

# Schedule Screen User Guide

Staffing and Scheduling

2021.1 through 2021.2



November 2021 Revision: 1

#### **CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL**

The information contained in this document, and in any related attachments or documents, may contain confidential and/or privileged material and is intended only for current licensed clients of symplr products. Any reproduction, review, retransmission, dissemination, or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance upon, this information by persons or entities other than by the intended recipient is prohibited.

If you are an unintended recipient of this document, or are in possession of this document by mistake, please destroy this document in its entirety or contact us at (866) 373-9725.

## Contents

Change log	6
Schedule Screen Overview	7
Opening a Schedule	
Tool Bar Functions	
Schedule Menu Options	13
Open	
Reports	15
Create Schedule	16
Create Employee Schedule	17
Clear	18
Publish Schedule	
Archive	
Edit Menu Options	
Cut	
Swap From / Swap To	
Paste	
Delete	
Add New Code	
Add Transaction Note	
Aug Transaction Note	20
Fublish	
Highlight	
Schedule Items	
Coverage Sets	
Schedule Notes	34
Adding a Schedule Note	35
Canceling a Schedule Note	36
Styles	37
Set Lavout As System Default	
Tasks Menu Options	
Review Requests	38
Review Employee Schedule Exceptions	38
Call In	38
Call Off	
Apply Staffing Template	
Open Staffing Plan	
Recalculate Staffing Needs	

View Calculated Data	55
Column Explanations	56
Set Schedule for Bidding	57
Flat Dollar Method	58
Percentage Method	60
Link to Employees	63
Help Menu Options	63
Legend	64
Help	64
About	64
Scheduling Period Navigator	65
Employee Information	66
Group Headers (Employee Information Section)	66
Employee Information Right-Click Menu	67
Group By	67
Show/Hide Details	67
Add Employees	69
Create Employee Schedule	70
LINK TO Employee	/1
Add Bow Soperator	/1 71
Add Row Separator	/ 1
Schedule Grid	/ 1
Schedule Cells	72
	/4
Creating a New Schedule Filter	/5
Date Headers	11
Scroll Bars	70
Schedule Grid Functions	
Adding New Schedules	80
Handling Validation Errors	
Moving Employee Schedules Using the Drag-and-Drop Method	84
Cutting and Pasting Employee Schedules	85
Copying and Pasting Employee Schedules	86
Deleting an Employee Schedule	87
Editing an Existing Schedule	88
Publishing Highlighted Schedules	89
Approve or Deny a Schedule Incentive Request	90
Deleting, Reopening, and Reassigning a Schedule Incentive Request	90
Zoom Control	92

Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid	
Group Headers (Balancing Grids)	
Date Headers	
Balancing Grid Cells	
Staffing Details	
My Totals - Creating Custom Totals	
Balancing Grid Right-Click Menu	
Recalculate Staffing Needs	
Call In Employees	
Call Off Employees	
Add Schedule Note	
View Schedule Notes	
Set Schedule for Bidding	
Flat Dollar Method	
Percentage Method	
Open Incentive Schedules	104
Format	105
Acceptable Variance	
Profile Area Right-Click Menu	
Group By (Balancing Grids)	
Configure My Totals	
Requests	
Transaction	
Unavailability	
Trade	
Schedule Incentive	
Work	
Class Enrollment	
Employee Schedule Exceptions	

## Change log

### Note

Document announcement. This 2021.2 version of the document will be the last one available as a PDF. All content is found in the online help and will only be maintained there going forward. From the portal or the Schedule Grid, click **Help** to view the topics for the Schedule screen.

### 2021.1 and 2021.2 - updated November 2021

Торіс	Description
Various topics	Updated the information about interacting with the Schedule screen to include clicking and dragging as a way to select multiple cells.

#### 2021.2 - released November 2021

Торіс	Description
Scroll Bars (on page 79)	Added information for the new scroll map functionality.

#### 2021.1 - released June 2021

Торіс	Description
Topics under <u>Edit</u> <u>Menu Options (on</u> <u>page 23)</u>	Updated several topics for the new functionality that allows for selecting multiple cells so that you can use the scheduling options across multiple days or employees.
Topics under Schedule Grid Functions (on page 80)	
Show/Hide Details (on page 67)	This section was updated with new instructions for the updated look and functionality of the Schedule screen.

## Schedule Screen Overview

The purpose of this information is to give you an explanation of the different parts of Staffing and Scheduling's Schedule screen and the functions available to you.

### **Performance consideration**

The Schedule screen can support the following usage scenarios with minimal performance issues:

- A six-week schedule period with 3,000 employees (each with one schedule per day)
- A four-week schedule period with 4,500 employees (each with one schedule per day)

Note that these scenarios are approximations. The number of supported employees can change with different length schedule periods and having more or fewer transactions per day.

#### **Overview**

The Schedule screen is used to view, add, edit, and delete employee schedules and to view the staffing coverage for the selected organization units and date range. It is a powerful scheduling tool and while this guide gives you a good overview of it, you should contact symplr Customer Support if you have any questions or complex scheduling situations.

hedule Edit	View Tasks Help	0 A							S 🔊	😽 Showing All 63 E	mployees
02/07	/2021 - 04/02/2021	Facilit	y: SJ					<		+	Apply Filt
03/01/	2021-04/03/2021	Cost C	Center: 120	<sup>1.3</sup> B				C	🔽 Highlig	ght matched results	Clear Filte
Exceptions	Last	First	Shift	Appr Hrs	Job Class 🔺	Phone	Sunday 03/07	Monday 03/08	Tuesday 03/09	Wednesday 03/10	ľ
▲ SJ - 1201	.3: 56 items										
	Beck	Tomas	2	72.00	ANM						
	Bray	Marisa	2	64.00	ANM		6				ľ
	Bridges	Clayton	3	48.00	ANM			D1	D1	D1	
	Townsend	Frances	1	72.00	ANM	(123) 222-4444	N2	N2			
	Dockor	Mitchell	Л	0.00	FC_PN						
Balancing Gr	id Requests (0) Emp	loyee Schedule	Exceptions	(0) Activity Balancing	g Grid View Calcu	lated Data					-
Profile		Start	Hours 🔺	Organization Unit			Sunday 03/07	Monday 03/08	Tuesday 03/09	Wednesday 03/10	
▪ D07-11: 2	2 items	I					-8.00	-8.00	-8.00	-8.00	
▲ D11-15: 3	3 items						-8.00	-7.00	-8.00	-8.00	
NA-ICU	•	11:00	4.00	SJ - 1201.3			-1.00	1.00	0.00	0.00	
RN-ICU	-	11:00	4.00	SJ - 1201.3			-7.00	-8.00	-8.00	-8.00	
HUC-ICU		11:00	4.00	SJ - 1201.3			0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	▼
									<u> </u>	<u>· · · · ·</u> (	100%

The structure of the Schedule screen is labeled and explained in the following image and table.

The schedule screen is divided into the following areas:

Letter on image	Area	Description	
A	Toolbar	The toolbar displays menu options for various functions. Click a menu option, such as Schedule or Edit, to view the related functions.	
В	Schedule period navigator	The navigator displays the date range of the schedule you are viewing. Click the left or right arrow to move to the previous or next schedule period.	
С	Schedule filter	The filter allows you to display only the information you are interested in or to limit the visible data. For example, you can add a filter that allows you to only see RNs working the Evening coverage period.	
D	Employee information	The employee information area displays the names of the employees in the open schedule. Other employee details are available, such as phone number, seniority date, approved hours, and scheduled hours. In addition, when you rest on a name, details are available in a tooltip and can display different details than what you see on the screen.	
E	Schedule grid	The schedule grid area displays the employees' schedules and allows you to view, add, edit, and delete schedules. When you rest on a schedule, a tooltip displays the profile, activity code, start and end times, and organization unit for the schedule.	
F	Schedule period information	This area contains tabs used to view specific information about the schedule you are viewing. For example, the Balancing Grid displays the staffing coverage and need. The values in these cells can show you the need, the coverage, the variance (as shown in the previous illustration), or a coverage/need fraction. When you rest on a cell, a tooltip displays the coverage, need, and variance.	
		Coverage for that profile/date are highlighted in the schedule grid. Other tabs include: Requests, Employee Schedule Exceptions, Activity	
		Other tabs include: Requests, Employee Schedule Exceptions, Activity Balancing Grid, and View Calculated Data.	

Letter on image	Area	Description
G	Information bar	The information bar displays, on the left side, the status of any processing happening for the Schedule screen, such as Synchronizing schedule and Synchronizing employee exceptions. These messages only appear as the system is completing a process; normally, this area is blank. On the right side of the information bar, a zoom slider allows you to zoom in and out to make viewing the screen more manageable for you.

**Related information** 

Opening a Schedule (on the next page)

Tool Bar Functions (on page 12)

Scheduling Period Navigator (on page 65)

Employee Information (on page 66)

Schedule Grid (on page 72)

Zoom Control (on page 92)

Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid (on page 93)

Requests (on page 110)

Employee Schedule Exceptions (on page 121)

## **Opening a Schedule**

The Open Schedule dialog box is used to enter criteria to open the Schedule screen for a certain time period and for a single organization unit or schedule group. An archived schedule can also be opened from the Open Schedule dialog box.

### Open the Schedule screen

To open the Schedule screen, complete the following steps.

1. Navigate to Actions > Scheduling > Schedule.

After a few moments, the Schedule screen window appears with the Open Schedule dialog box.

If you are already viewing the Schedule screen, click **Schedule > Open**.

- 2. In the Open Schedule area, select the appropriate option.
  - **Organization Unit** opens the schedule for a single organization unit. The trunk level, such as facility, and branch level, such as department, organization unit levels are required. The leaf level, such as unit, level is optional.
  - Schedule Group/Profile Group opens the schedule for a Schedule Group, which contains multiple organization units set up together, as well as Profile Groups.

#### Note

Schedule Groups must be previously set up here: **Configuration > Scheduling > Schedule Group**.

The Profile Groups that are available must be previously added here: **Configuration > Labor Distribution > Profile Group**, and then assigned here: **Configuration > Labor Distribution > Profile**.

### Note

If preferences have been set up, you may see a default organization unit or schedule group already entered in the fields. Even if a default organization unit or schedule group appears, you can override the prefilled information with the desired organization unit or schedule group.

To set up default preferences, navigate to **Preferences > My Preferences (or System Preferences) > Default Organization Unit (or Default Schedule Group)**.

- 3. In the **Select Date** area, select the appropriate option.
  - Schedule Period is used to select a predefined scheduling period for the organization unit or scheduling group. This value defaults to the schedule period that contains the current date. From the drop-down menu, select the desired schedule period.
  - **Custom Date** is used to define the time frame to open. Enter the Start Date and End Date, or select the dates from the drop-down menus.
- 4. When all options are filled in, click **Open Schedule**.

#### Open an archived schedule

A schedule that was previously archived can be opened and viewed by using the **Open Archive** tab.

For more information on archiving schedules, see <u>Archive (on page 22)</u>.

To open an archived schedule, complete the following steps.

1. Navigate to **Actions > Scheduling > Schedule**.

After a few moments, the Schedule screen window appears with the Open Schedule dialog box.

If you are already viewing the Schedule screen, click **Schedule > Open**.

- 2. Click the **Open Archive** tab.
- 3. Select the **Organization Unit** or **Schedule Group** option.
- 4. Enter (or search for and select) the desired organization unit or schedule group.
- 5. Optional. In the Description field, enter the description of the previously archived schedule.
- 6. Optional. In the Contains Date field, enter a date (or select a date) that fell within the schedule period of the archived schedule.
- 7. Click Search.

Schedule archives that match your selected criteria appear in the Search Results area.

8. Select the desired archived schedule and click **Open Schedule**.

The archived schedule appears in read-only mode.

## **Tool Bar Functions**

The Tool Bar displays menus of functions, or icons for launching actions.

Click on the option in the tool bar to open the related menu. Then click on the menu item to launch the function.

### Note

If keyboard keys can launch the same function, they are also displayed.

The following tool bar options are available:

Schedule Menu Options (on the next page)	Opens a menu of options for the schedule screen.
Edit Menu Options (on page 23)	Opens a menu of options for editing the cells of the schedule grid.
View Menu Options (on page 31)	Opens a menu of options for viewing or highlighting the schedule.
Tasks Menu Options (on page 38)	Opens a menu of options to launch a related screen in the portal to complete a task or action.
Help Menu Options (on page 63)	Opens the help options, which includes the About screen with copyright and trademark information about the schedule screen.
Ø	Click on this icon to refresh the information in the schedule. This will load information that has been entered and saved by other users and also changes made in the portal, such as updates to employee information or added or edited activity codes.

## Schedule Menu Options

The Schedule menu option opens a listing of functions for the entire schedule screen. Click on the option in the menu to launch the function or to open a set up screen.

### Open

The Open function opens a screen to enter criteria when opening a different schedule. This can be for a different for a single organization unit or for a schedule group and/or for a different date range than the open schedule.

An archived schedule can be opened by accessing the **Open Archive** tab and completing the screen displayed.

### Note

For more information, see .

### To open a schedule, complete the following steps:

1. In the tool bar, **Schedule** menu, select the **Open** function.

The following screen is displayed.

Open Schedule	×
Open Schedule Open Archive	
Open Schedule	
Organization Unit	
Facility	
Cost Center	
Reporting Unit	
Schedule/Profile Groups	
Schedule Group	
Profile Group	
Select Date	
Schedule Period	
Custom Date	
Start Date: 11/29/2016 👻	
End Date: 11/29/2016 -	
Open Schedu	Ile Cancel

- 2. In the Open Schedule area, select the appropriate option button to enable the corresponding selection fields.
  - Select the **Organization Unit** button to open the schedule for a single organization unit. The trunk level, such as facility, and branch level, such as department, organization unit levels are required. The leaf level, such as unit, level is optional.
  - Select the **Schedule Group/Profile Groups** button to open the schedule for a Schedule Group, which contains multiple organization units set up together, as well as Profile Groups.

#### Note

Schedule Groups must be previously set up on the Schedule Group screen. The Profile Groups that are available must be previously added on the Profile Group screen, and then assigned on the Profile screen.

3. If defaults are set up for the organization unit or schedule group, these fields are automatically filled. However, a different organization unit or schedule group can be entered. Click on the search icon to the right of the field to access the options for the field.

#### Note

For more information on setting up a default organization unit, see **Preferences > Default Organization Unit**. For more information on setting up a default scheduling group, see **Preferences > Default Scheduling**.

- 4. In the **Select Date** area, select the appropriate option button to activate the corresponding date fields.
  - Select the **Schedule Period** option to select a predefined scheduling period for the organization unit or scheduling group. This value defaults to the schedule period that contains the current date. Click the drop-down menu icon to the right of the field to view a listing of the schedule periods.
  - Select the **Custom Date** option to define the time frame to open. Enter the Start Date to indicate the first day of the date range to open and the End Date to define the last day of the date range. Click the drop-down menu icon to open a calendar to select the dates.
- 5. When all options are filled in, click on the **Open Schedule** button.

#### Note

To stop the process of opening the schedule, click on the **Cancel** button. The set up screen will close.

### Reports

You can view the following reports directly from the Schedule screen.

- 2 Week Schedule This report shows the current schedule for a two-week date range.
- **4 Week Schedule (Legal)** This report shows the current schedule for a four-week date range, displayed on legal sized paper.
- **4 Week Schedule (Letter)** This report shows the current schedule for a four-week date range, displayed on letter sized paper.

To access these reports, complete the following steps.

- 1. Click Schedule > select the report to view.
- 2. In the Report Preferences dialog box, select the **Balancing Grid** or **Activity Balancing Grid** option, and click **Show Report**.

### **Create Schedule**

The Create Schedule function opens a wizard used to run the scheduling process for the open organization unit or schedule group.

To create a schedule, complete the following steps:

1. From the tool bar, click **Schedule > Create Schedule**.

The Create Schedule Wizard appears.

Start Date*	Selection Style*	
02/12/2012	Core - Fill w/ Rotating -	
End Date*	Create Schedule Audit Report*	
03/10/2012	× No •	
1.1.E		
By Profile*	Employee Class Code	
No	•	

- 2. Some fields are filled in for you. Update any prefilled fields and enter the necessary information in the remaining fields.
  - Start Date and End Date

The dates for the open schedule period appear but can be changed; however, both dates must fall within the open schedule period.

Selection Style

The default Selection Style appears, but a different one can be selected.

Create Schedule Audit Report

This option, when set to **Yes**, generates a report that tracks whether employees were scheduled and any reasons that disqualified them from being scheduled. This report is viewed in **Reports > Scheduling > Create Schedule Audit Report**.

• By Profile

This option determines whether to run the scheduling process for all profiles or only for selected profiles.

- **No -** the scheduling process is run for all profiles in the selected organization unit or schedule group
- Yes (then click Next) the next step of the wizard allows you to search for and select the profiles to include in the scheduling process
- Employee Class Code

This option allows you run the scheduling process for a specified employee class. Click the search icon to search for and select an Employee Class Code or leave blank to run the process for all employee classes.

3. Click Finish.

When the process finishes, the schedule screen is updated with the results of the scheduling process.

Tip

To view any error messages, open the report in Actions > System > Process Reports > Process Definition Code field = Schedule.

### Create Employee Schedule

The Create Employee Schedule function opens a wizard used to run the scheduling process for a single employee.

To create an employee schedule, complete the following steps:

1. Click the name of the employee whose schedule you are creating.

The employee row is highlighted.

2. From the tool bar, click Schedule > Create Employee Schedule.

The Create Employee Schedule wizard appears.

eate Employee Schedule		
ected Employee: Frances	Townsend	
Start Date*	Selection Style*	
02/12/2012	Core - Fill w/ Rotating -	
End Date*	Create Schedule Audit Report*	
03/10/2012	No	

- 3. Some fields are filled in for you. Update any prefilled fields and enter the necessary information in the remaining fields.
  - Start Date and End Date

The dates for the open schedule period appear but can be changed; however, both dates must fall within the open schedule period.

Selection Style

The default Selection Style appears, but a different one can be selected.

Create Schedule Audit Report

This option, when set to **Yes**, generates a report that tracks whether the employee was scheduled and any reasons that disqualified the employee from being scheduled. This report is viewed in the **Reports > Scheduling > Create Schedule Audit Report**.

4. Click Finish.

When the process finishes, the schedule screen is updated with the results of the scheduling process.

### Clear

The Clear schedule function opens a wizard used to clear employee schedules for the indicated time frame. Schedules can be cleared for the entire open schedule period or for a shorter time frame within the open schedule period.

To clear the activities from the schedule, complete the following steps:

1. From the tool bar, click **Schedule > Clear**.

The Clear Schedule Wizard appears.

lear Schedule lease Enter The Clear S	chedule Criter	ia for Facility SJ	H Cost Center 1	1201.30400		
Start Date* 02/12/2012						
End Date* 03/10/2012						
Employee Selection	*					
Current Employee	•					
					< Back	Next >

2. If needed, select a Start Date and End Date for the time frame to clear the schedule.

The start and end dates of the open schedule period appear by default but can be changed; however, both dates must fall within the open schedule period.

- 3. In the Employee Selection menu, select the option for the employees whose schedules will be cleared.
  - Current Employee the employee highlighted on the schedule grid
  - Select Employees choose employees from a list
- 4. Click **Next** and complete the steps from one of the following subheadings, depending on whether you selected Current Employee or Select Employees.

#### **Current Employee**

The employee's schedules appear, with individual rows for the different combinations of Location, Type, and Source.

Clear Schedule Please choose the record types to delete						
	Location	Туре	Source	Total Records	Access to Delete	
	Home	Published Schedule	Manual	1	1	
	1 Same	Danaliza Cabadula	Manual	1	1	

- 1. Select the boxes for the rows of the schedules you need to clear.
- 2. Click Next.
- 3. To make changes to which schedules will be cleared, click **Back** and repeat steps 1 and 2.
- 4. When you are ready to clear the schedules, click **Finish**.

The schedules are removed from the schedule.

#### **Select Employees**

The employees from the schedule grid appear.

a <mark>r Sche</mark> ise sele	dule ct the employees to de	lete schedules for
	Employee Name	Employee Code
	Frances Townsend	1456
	Clayton Bridges	1498
	Candice Gilmore	67077
	Maggie Holden.	65787

- 1. Select the boxes for the names whose schedules you need to clear.
- 2. Click Next.
- 3. Select the boxes for the rows of the schedules you need to clear.
- 4. Click Next.
- 5. To make changes to which schedules will be cleared, click **Back** and repeat steps 1 4.
- 6. When you are ready to clear the schedules, click Finish.

The schedules are removed from the schedule.

### **Publish Schedule**

The Publish Schedule function opens a screen to publish all or part of the open schedule. The user can publish all schedules or just the schedules visible when a filter is applied. The user can also select whether to publish schedules that employees have in other organization units, or only those schedules in the currently open organization unit.

To publish a schedule, complete the following steps:

1. From the tool bar, select the Schedule option, then the Publish Schedule command.

The following set up screen is displayed.

Schedules	All Schedules	•
Distri <mark>buti</mark> ons	Current Distribution	
start Date	01/29/2012	
End Date	02/11/2012	
acility	()	9
Cost Center		9
Reporting Unit		Q

- 2. In the Schedules field, indicate whether to publish all the schedules in the open schedule, or only those schedules that are visible. If a schedule filter is loaded and the **Visible** option is chosen, only those schedules included in the filter are published.
  - If the **All Schedules** option is chosen, all the employee schedules in the open schedule screen are published.
  - If the **All Visible Schedules** option is chosen, only the employee schedules that are currently visible in the schedule screen are published. For example, if there is a filter loaded to view only RN's positions on the Day shift, when the **All Visible Schedules** options is selected, only activities that are scheduled for RN positions and that overlap the Day coverage period are published.

### Note

For more information about applying a schedule filter, see <u>Schedule Filters (on page 74)</u>.

- 3. In the Distribution field, indicate whether to publish only the employee schedules that apply to the currently opened organization unit/schedule group, or whether to also publish schedules in alternate labor distributions for any employee on this schedule screen.
- 4. Enter the Start Date and End Date of the date range to publish the schedule. The start and end dates of the open schedule are defaulted but can be changed, as long as the dates fall within the open scheduling period.
- 5. The Organization Unit or Schedule Group values are defaulted from the open schedule screen and cannot be updated.
- 6. Click on the **Publish** button to publish the schedules.

#### Note

Published schedules are displayed in the schedule grid with the text and schedule box border in bold.

Pending Schedule	Published Schedule
0700-08	0700-08

### Archive

The Archive Schedule function opens a screen to create an archive of the open schedule. An archive is a snapshot of a schedule showing the employee assignments and staffing requirements on a particular date and time. No edits can be made to an archived schedule.

Multiple archives can be taken of the same scheduling period. For example, an archive can be taken when the schedule is finalized before the first day of the scheduling period, and another one can be taken after the scheduling period is over.

To archive a schedule, complete the following steps:

1. From the tool bar, select the Schedule menu, then the Archive Schedule function.

The following screen is displayed.

rchive Schedule	
Description:	

- 2. In the Description field, enter a label for this version of the archived schedule.
- 3. Click on the **Create Archive** button to create the archive.
- 4. Archived schedules can be opened and viewed, but cannot be modified in any way.

#### Note

For more information about searching for and viewing an archived schedule, see <u>Open an</u> archived schedule (on page 11).

## **Edit Menu Options**

The options in the Edit menu are used to modify the employee schedules in the Schedule Grid. Highlight a schedule (a calendar or clocking), a cell, or multiple cells, and then click on the appropriate Edit option. The options that are enabled (displayed in bold) are available for a cell.

Many of these options can also be accessed by right-clicking when the cursor is in the employee schedule grid.

### Cut

The Cut and Paste options allow you to remove a schedule from one or more cells and then paste it in another cell for the same or different employee. You can continue to paste this same schedule into as many cells as needed.

### Note

If you paste into a cell that already has a schedule, the behavior of the original schedule is determined by indicator SS Application: SS Solution Standard 5, "Determines the copy and paste method used by the Schedule screen".

If the indicator is set to:

- A the new schedule is appended, leaving the original schedule in place.
- **O** the new schedule overwrites (deletes) the original schedule.

To cut and paste employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be cut (removed).

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to cut only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to cut schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Cut. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Cut option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-X.
- 3. Highlight the cell where the schedules should be pasted.

- 4. Use one of following methods to paste schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Paste. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Paste option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-V.

The schedule you cut is now assigned to the highlighted cells.

### Copy

The Copy and Paste options allow you to make a duplicate of one or more employee schedules and then to paste in another cell for the same or different employee. The copied schedules will have the same assignment information as the original, such as activity code or profile. You can paste this same schedule into as many cells as needed.

### Note

If you paste into a cell that already has a schedule, the behavior of the original schedule is determined by indicator SS Application: SS Solution Standard 5, "Determines the copy and paste method used by the Schedule screen".

If the indicator is set to:

- A the new schedule is appended, leaving the original schedule in place.
- **O** the new schedule overwrites (deletes) the original schedule.

To copy and paste employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, click the cell or cells with the schedules to be copied.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to copy only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to copy schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Copy. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Copy option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-C.
- 3. Highlight the cell where the schedules should be pasted.

- 4. Use one of following methods to paste schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Paste. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Paste option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-V.

The schedule you copied is now assigned to the highlighted cells.

A schedule can also be copied using the drag-and-drop method. For more information, see <u>Copying and</u> <u>Pasting Employee Schedules (on page 86)</u>.

### Swap From / Swap To

Employee schedules can be swapped between one or more cells, either for the same employee or another employee.

### Example

Mary works on Tuesday and David work on Wednesday. You can swap those schedules in one move without having to do multiple add and delete actions.

To swap employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells to be swapped.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to swap only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to swap schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Swap From. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Swap From option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-W.
- 3. Highlight the cell or the other schedule involved in the swap.
- 4. Use one of following methods to swap schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Swap To. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Swap To option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-V.

The schedules are now swapped.

### Paste

The Paste function is used to assign schedules into one or more cells after they were previously cut or copied.

For more information and instructions, see Cut (on page 23) or Copy (on page 24).

### Тір

A schedule can also be copied using the drag-and-drop method. For more information, see <u>Copying</u> and Pasting Employee Schedules (on page 86).

### Delete

The Delete function is used to remove an employee schedule from the grid. Deleted schedules cannot be pasted.

To delete employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be deleted.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to delete only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to delete schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Delete. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Delete option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Delete.

The schedule is deleted.

### **Reset Clipboard Data**

The Reset Clipboard Data function allows you to clear your computer's clipboard memory. Since certain functions temporarily store information in the clipboard, clearing it is helpful in the following types of situations.

- You copied a schedule but meant to cut it.
- You copied the wrong schedule.
- You cut a schedule but changed your mind.
- You accidentally selected Swap From when you meant to select Copy.

Whenever these types of situations occur, you can clear the computer's clipboard and start over. Reset the clipboard by using one of the following methods.

- Click Edit > Reset Clipboard Data.
- Right-click anywhere on the schedule grid and select **Reset Clipboard Data** from the menu.

### Add New Code

The Add New Code option is used to enter a new scheduled activity for an employee. This option is also used when you want to add a second activity to the same schedule cell.

#### Тір

There are several ways to add schedules for employees. For information, see <u>Adding New Schedules</u> (on page 80).

To add a new code to one or more cells, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the appropriate cell or cells .

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to add schedule:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Add New Code. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the **Edit** menu, then the **Add New Code** option.

The outline of an activity box is shown in the cell.

#### 3. Type the activity code or pay and press Enter.

• Activity code: enter the activity code, such as 0700-8

To change the employee's default profile, type the activity code, a delimiter, and the profile code. For example, type **0700-8 CH** to change from the default RN profile to a Charge profile.

• Pay code: enter the pay code, start time, and length in hours (all separated by delimiters), such as **PTO 0000 24** (for PTO starting at midnight and lasting 24 hours)

Leading zeros and colons in the time are not required. For example, these are all acceptable entries: 0700, 07:00, 700, and 7:00

A decimal point in the hours value is allowed. For example, these are all acceptable entries: 8, 8.0, 8.5, and 8.50

Delimiters are characters that separate strings of text or numbers. Delimiters can be spaces, commas, or semicolons.

Examples: 0700-8 CH or PTO,0000,24 or PTO;0000;

### Add Transaction Note

The Add Transaction Note function is used to attach a note to an employee schedule. This note can give information such as why an employee came in late or left early or any other information.

These notes may be included in certain schedule reports, if the report parameter is set to include them.

To add a note to an employee schedule complete the following steps:

- 1. In the Employee Schedule Grid, highlight the schedule that should have the note attached.
- 2. Open the screen to add a new note using one of the following options.
  - Right-click to open the menu and then select the Add Transaction Note function
  - From the tool bar, open the Edit menu and then select the Add Transaction Note function.
  - On the keyboard, hold down the <Ctrl> button and then click on the T button.
  - Double-click the transaction, then expand the **Notes** section.

3. The following screen is displayed. The Notes section is near the bottom of this screen.

Published Schedule for Lorie Bur	
Schedule Calendar	(* Asterisks indicate required fields.)
Activity Code* DAY8	
Activity code DATS	
Original Source: Manual	
Current Source: Manual	
▲ General	
Date* 07/22/2013 •	Rate
Time* 07:00	
Hours/Units* 8.00	
Lunch Length (Hours) 0.00	
<ul> <li>Scheduled Labor Distribution</li> </ul>	
A Notes	
<ul> <li>Notes History</li> </ul>	
Predefined Note Code	
Subject	
Body	
Publish this activity when saving	Save

4. To add a predefined note, click on the icon to the left of the Predefined Note Code field to access a menu of existing code options.

	Enter Filter Term			
Code 🔺	Description			
DEPT	Department changed to area worked			
FAM	Left due to family emergency.			
FB	Associate forgot badge at home.			
FNRL	Funeral leave submission.			
IBH	Associate has insufficient benefit balan			
LATE	Associate is late for work.			
LB	Associate lost badge.			
ML	Medical Leave			
POWER	No power on campus when associate b			
58	Associate's badge was stolen			
TRAUMA	Working trauma, not able to badge.			

- 5. Select an option from the listing. The Subject and Body fields are automatically filled in with the values from the predefined note. If the body is editable, additional information can be typed in the field.
- 6. If a predefined note is not selected, enter a title for this note in the Subject field.
- 7. In the Body field, enter any information for the note.
- 8. Click Save. Or click Cancel to cancel the creation of this note.

### Note

For more information on predefined notes, see **Configuration > System > Predefined Notes**.

### **Publish**

The Publish function is used to publish (post) selected schedules on the Schedule screen.

### Note

To publish all the schedules in the open schedule period, go to Schedule > Publish Schedule

To publish one or more employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be published.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to publish only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

2. Use one of following methods to publish schedules:

Note that the Publish option is available only when there is at least one pending schedule in the selected cells.

- Right-click to display the menu and select **Publish**. OR
- From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Publish option. OR
- On the keyboard, press Ctrl-U.

The schedules are now published and appear with bolder borders around them.

## View Menu Options

The View option opens a menu of options for viewing or highlighting the schedule. An authorized user can also set the current view as the default for all other users.

### Highlight

The Highlight function is used to highlight selected scheduled activities, making them easier to identify.

#### Note

This functionality is only available when the Highlight option is not selected on the Schedule filter. For more information, see <u>Schedule Filters (on page 74)</u>.

### Clear

Click on the Clear option to clear all the previously selected highlights.

### **Activities**

Select the **Activities** option to highlight activity codes that meet the criteria of the selected option to the left. For example, the user can highlight all activities that are less than 8 hours, activities that are less than 4 hours, and self scheduled activities.

lighlight	•	Clear		
hedule Items	•	A		TAPPEL ALL
overage Sets	•	Activities		with Notes
chedule Notes		Calendars	•	With Zero Hours
tvles	•			Less Than 4 Hours
				Less Than 8 Hours
et Layout as System Defa	ult			Greater Than 4 Hours
				Greater Than 8 Hours
Refresh	F5			Greater Than 10 Hours
				Greater Than 12 Hours
				Self Scheduled

Select one of the options from the menu that displays on the right. All schedules that meet the criteria are highlighted in the schedule grid.

E4+1845	E4+1845	E4+1845	0645-08	0645-08	0645-08		E4+1845	E4+1845
X12-0645	X12-0645	ED	X12-0645			E4-1600	X12-0645	X12-0645

### Calendars

Select the **Calendars** option to highlight calendars that are set with zero hours. This allows the user to add an hour value to these calendars.

View Tasks Help (				
Highlight	•	Clear		
Schedule Items	•	Activities	•	
Schedule Notes		Calendars	•	With Zero Hours
Styles	•			

The calendars with zero hours assigned are highlighted in the schedule grid.

PTOS	0700-08
	2300-08

#### Note

To add an hours value to the calendar, double-click on the calendar box to open the activity and enter the hours in the Hours/Unit field.

### Schedule Items

The Schedule Items option allows users to select the types of activities to display on the schedule screen.

Select items to display on the schedule by checking the box to the left of each type of activity to display. Click the box to alternately add and remove the check mark. When completed, click on the **Apply** button to apply the filter.



### **Coverage Sets**

The Coverage Sets option allows users to display an alternate view of the staffing coverage, based on the coverage periods set up for the coverage set selected from the list.

A coverage set breaks down a day into defined coverage periods, so that staffing needs and assigned staff can be analyzed. For example, a typical coverage set "DEN" breaks down a day into three 8-hour coverage periods: Day (7:00-15:00), Evening (15:00-23:00), and Night (23:00-7:00). Another typical coverage set DDEENN breaks a day into six 4-hour coverage periods.

### Note

Coverage sets are set up on **Configuration > System > Coverage Sets**.

The coverage set assigned to the open organization unit is defaulted when the schedule is opened. Select an alternate coverage set to display by clicking on the option in the menu.



For example, when the DDEENN coverage set is loaded, the balancing grid displays the breakdown of coverage into 4-hour coverage period increments.

When the DEN coverage set is loaded, the balancing grid displays the breakdown of coverage into 8-hour coverage period increments.

### **Schedule Notes**

The Schedule Notes function opens a screen to view all the schedule notes that were attached to days in the open schedule screen.

The user can include schedule notes that were canceled by checking the box to the left of **Show Canceled Notes** in the upper left corner.

Sche	edule Notes								×
🔲 s	how Canceled N	celed Notes							
	Schedule Date	Facility	Cost Center	Reporting Unit	Coverage Period	Subject	When Created	Who Created	Note Code
	02/08/2012	SJH	1201.30400		D07-11	Quality - Transaction/Schedule Note	02/06/2012 10:52:29	System Support	Q-N22
							Cancel Selected	Add Note	Close
	Sche	Schedule Notes Show Canceled N Schedule Date O2/08/2012	Schedule Notes	Schedule Notes	Schedule Notes         Show Canceled Notes         Schedule Date       Facility       Cost Center       Reporting Unit         02/08/2012       SJH       1201.30400	Schedule Notes         Show Canceled Notes         Schedule Date       Facility       Cost Center       Reporting Unit       Coverage Period         02/08/2012       SJH       1201.30400       D07-11	Schedule Notes         Schedule Date       Facility       Cost Center       Reporting Unit       Coverage Period       Subject         02/08/2012       SJH       1201.30400       D07-11       Quality - Transaction/Schedule Note	Schedule Notes         Schedule Date       Facility       Cost Center       Reporting Unit       Coverage Period       Subject       When Created         02/08/2012       SJH       1201.30400       D07-11       Quality - Transaction/Schedule Not       02/06/2012 10:52:29         V       V       V       D07-11       Quality - Transaction/Schedule Not       02/06/2012 10:52:29         V       V       V       V       V       V       V       V         V       V       V       V       V       V       V       V       V         V <th>Schedule Notes         Schedule Date       Facility       Cost Center       Reporting Unit       Coverage Period       Subject       When Created       Who Created         02/08/2012       SJH       1201.30400       D07-11       Quality - Transaction/Schedule Not       02/06/2012 10:52:29       System Support</th>	Schedule Notes         Schedule Date       Facility       Cost Center       Reporting Unit       Coverage Period       Subject       When Created       Who Created         02/08/2012       SJH       1201.30400       D07-11       Quality - Transaction/Schedule Not       02/06/2012 10:52:29       System Support

- The user can cancel notes displayed on this screen by checking the box to the left of the note and then clicking on the **Cancel Selected Notes** button.
- A user can add a new schedule note by clicking on the **Add Note** button and then completing the page.
- For more information, see Adding a Schedule Note (on the next page).

### Adding a Schedule Note

Schedule notes can be attached to a schedule cell to give more information on the staffing situation for that day. For example, this can give information about census, about weather, about holidays or other events causing staffing variations.

To add a schedule note, complete the following.

1. From the tool bar, select the **View** menu, then the **Schedule Notes** function.

- or -

- 2. From the balancing grid, right-click, then the **Schedule Notes** function.
- 3. Click on the Add Note button at the bottom of the screen.

The Add Schedule Note appears.

Schedule Date	02/08/2012		
Coverage Period	D07-11	٩	
Predefined Note Code		9	
Subject		Look up value for this field	

- 4. In the Schedule Date field, enter the date where this note should be attached.
- 5. If the note pertains only to a specific coverage period, enter this in the Coverage Period field.
- 6. Select a Predefined Note Code to enter standardized subject and body text. To enter a customized note, leave this field blank.

#### Note

Predefined notes are previously set up on **Configuration > System > Predefined Notes** with the Schedule Note option set to **Yes**.

- 7. In the Subject field, enter a title for this note.
- 8. In the Body field, enter the free-from text for this note.
- 9. When all information has been entered, click on the **Save** button.
- 10. An icon is displayed in the date header of the balancing grid to indicate there is a schedule note for that day.



### Canceling a Schedule Note

If authorized, schedule notes can be canceled by the user who entered them or by an administrator. By default, canceled notes do not appear on the notes listing or on reports.

To cancel a schedule note, complete the following steps:

1. With the cursor in the balancing grid, right-click and select the View Schedule Notes option.

OR

From the tool bar, open the View menu and select Schedule Notes.

- 2. Select the notes to be canceled by entering a check mark in the box to the left of the record. Clicking on this box alternately adds and removes the check mark.
- 3. Click on the Cancel Selected Notes button.

The note is now hidden in this screen until the user selects the Show Canceled Notes check box.

#### **Viewing Canceled Schedule Notes**

- 1. Authorized users can view notes that have been canceled. Complete the following steps.
- With the cursor in the balancing grid, right-click and select the View Schedule Notes option.
   OR

From the tool bar, open the View menu and select Schedule Notes.

3. Check the box to the left of **Show Canceled Notes**.

The canceled notes are displayed. An icon 🧭 indicates the note was canceled.

s	how Canceled N	otes							
	Schedule Date	Facility	Cost Center	Reporting Unit	Coverage Period	Subject	When Created	Who Created	Note Code
2	02/08/2012	SJH	1201.30400		D07-11	Quality - Transaction/Schedule Note	02/06/2012 10:52:29	System Support	Q-N22
# **Styles**

The Styles option allows the user to choose whether to display published scheduled activity boxes in solid color or transparent with a bold colored border around the box.

٠		
•		Solid Style
	~	Transparent Style
	•	•

Click on the option to set the view.

2300-08	Solid Style
2300-08	Transparent Style

### Note

The color of the schedule boxes are determined by the color set up for the activity code. This is found in **Configuration > Scheduling > Activity Codes**.

# Set Layout As System Default

An authorized user (administrator) can click on the **Set Layout As System Default** option to set the default for new users to be the same as the layout options set up on his or her screen. These options include employee grouping, row separators, and zoom level.

### Note

Selecting this function does not change the layout of current users--it only sets the default layout for new users.

Once a user logs in, he/she has the option of adjusting any or all of these settings. Those settings are saved when the user logs out, and are applied when the user logs back in.

# **Tasks Menu Options**

The Tasks menu option opens a menu of actions that can be taken for the schedule. Click on an item in the menu to open the required screen in the portal.

## **Review Requests**

The Review Requests option opens the **Requests** tab at the bottom of the schedule screen. From this screen, authorized users are able to view and handle requests.

Click on the **Select Request Type** menu to select the type of request to display. The fields that display are determined by the request type selected.

For more information on viewing, filtering, and handling requests, see the <u>Requests (on page 110)</u> section in the online help.

# **Review Employee Schedule Exceptions**

The Review Employee Schedule Exceptions option opens the **Employee Schedule Exceptions** tab at the bottom of the schedule screen. From this screen, you are able to view schedule exceptions.

Schedule exceptions, such as violations to minimum scheduling rules, are determined by the Schedule Period Validation selection style.

For more information, see the <u>Employee Schedule Exceptions (on page 121)</u> section in the online help and the Minimum Staffing User Guide found on Client Connections.

# Call In

The Call In scheduling assistant function opens a wizard used to search for qualified employees to fill a schedule opening. Selected employees are then added to the schedule screen.

How it works:

The system first determines which activity codes can fill the need of the schedule opening. Eligible activity codes are determined by one of the following methods:

- By entering the start time and length of the window to search for activity codes (where all hours of the activity code fall within that window).
- By entering a specific activity code.

The system then determines which employees are eligible to work the selected activity codes based on the qualification rules, such as Schedule Overlap or Overtime, set up on the specified selection style. The scheduling assistant may run multiple passes. For example, the first pass may look for employees who are under their approved hours and the second pass for employees under their overtime hours.

The process then gives you a list of qualified employees. The employees appear under the activity code they are qualified to work and they may appear under multiple activity codes. For example, if the scheduling assistant was run for the start time of 07:00 with a length of 8 hours, there might be several activity codes that fall within that time frame, such as D4, D6, and D8. All of these activity codes would show a list of employees who are eligible to work the activity.

To run the Call In scheduling assistant, complete the following steps:

- 1. In the balancing grid area of the schedule screen, click the cell that indicates the profile, coverage period, and date that the scheduling assistant should use.
- 2. Start the scheduling assistant by using one of the following methods:
  - From the tool bar, click **Tasks > Call In**.
  - From the balancing grid, right-click the appropriate cell. From the menu, select **Call In Employees**.

			5	Scheduling Assistant - Main Parameter
٩	Profile* RN-ICU Start Time 0700 Length (Hours)	Q Q	Facility SJH Cost Center 1201.30400 Reporting Unit	Mode* Call In • Selection Style* Date*
٩	4.00 Activity Code			02/12/2012
k	< Back			

The Call In scheduling assistant wizard appears.

- 3. Some fields are filled in for you. Update any prefilled fields and enter the necessary information in the remaining fields.
  - Mode

The Mode should be **Call In**. When a cell is understaffed, the Mode defaults to Call In.

Selection Style

Selection styles are previously set up in **Configuration > Schedule > Selection Styles**, with the Type set to **Scheduling Assistant Call In**.

Built in to the selection style are the qualifications for each of the passes and the sorting rules. If you set a personal default selection style or the system has a default selection style, this selection style is automatically entered in this field; however, it can be changed.

• Date, Organization Unit, Profile, Start Time, and Length (Hours)

These fields may be prefilled, based on the cell you highlighted in the balancing grid. These values can be changed.

Activity Code

Search for and select the appropriate activity code. If there are values in the Start Time and Length fields, the values are removed.

Тір

Use the Start Time and Length fields or the Activity Code field, but not both.

- 4. When all fields are completed, click Next.
- 5. As the process begins, the qualification rules may appear, indicating that field values can be changed.

The availability of these fields depends on whether each field is allowed to be viewed or is hidden, as set up on the Selection Style.

Pass 1 - Home O	g Unit	
Selection Rule	Home OU - All Employees With The Specified Home Organization Unit	
Facility		
SJH		
Cost Center		
1201.30400		
Reporting Unit		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

- 6. Click Next.
- 7. As the process continues, the sorting rules (how the qualifying employees will be ordered) may appear, indicating that field values can be changed.

The availability of these fields depends on whether each field is allowed to be viewed or is hidden, as set up on the Selection Style.

8. Click Next.

A list of qualified employees appears. Employee names appear under each pass that they qualified for, listed in the order determined by the sorting rules.

1 -	Home Org Unit	
<b>1: 0</b>	7:00 - 11:00	
4X:	07:00 - 11:00	
emp	loyee list is not sorted in any part	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules
emp arti	loyee list is not sorted in any par cular sort is desired.	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules
emp arti	loyee list is not sorted in any par cular sort is desired. Last Name	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules First Name
emp arti	loyee list is not sorted in any par cular sort is desired. Last Name Knight	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules First Name Michele
emp parti ]	loyee list is not sorted in any par cular sort is desired. Last Name Knight Burke	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules First Name Michele Lorie
emp parti ] ]	loyee list is not sorted in any par cular sort is desired. Last Name Knight Burke Pollard	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules First Name Michele Lorie Natasha
emp partic ] ] ]	loyee list is not sorted in any par cular sort is desired. Last Name Knight Burke Pollard Russo	ticular order. Please review the Selection Style and add in sorting rules First Name Michele Lorie Natasha Otis

### Тір

Some employees may qualify for more than one activity code within a pass and for more than one pass.

9. If desired, click View Results Report.

This creates a report with the qualified employees, their phone numbers, and a place for comments.

- 10. Select the boxes for the employees who will receive the schedule.
- 11. Click Finish.

The selected employees are now assigned the activity code and appears on the schedule.

### Call Off

The Call Off scheduling assistant function opens a wizard used to search for employees who are working during the selected time frame to identify employees to call off or send home. All or a part of the schedules of the selected employees can be removed from the schedule screen and the employees can be given an alternate activity code or pay code, such as a low census code.

How it works:

The system first determines which employees are working a schedule that overlaps all or a part of the call off time frame. This time frame is determined by one of the following methods:

- By entering the start time and length of the window to search for activity codes (where all hours of the activity code fall within that window).
- By entering a specific activity code.

The system then determines which employees are eligible to be called off based on the qualification rules set up on the specified selection style. The scheduling assistant may run multiple passes. For example, the first pass may look for employees who are over their overtime hours and the second pass for employees over their approved hours.

The process then gives you a list of qualified employees. You can select the employees to be called off and whether to call off all or a part of the scheduled activities for the employees. You also determine if the employees are given a replacement activity code, such as Low Census.

To run the Call Off scheduling assistant, complete the following steps:

- 1. Start the scheduling assistant by using one of the following methods.
  - From the tool bar, click Tasks > Call Off.
  - From the balancing grid, right-click the appropriate cell. From the menu, select **Call Off Employees**.

Call Off Employees		<u>×</u>
Scheduling Assistant - Main Paramet	ers	
Mode*	Facility	Profile*
Call Off 🔹	SJH	NA-ICU
Selection Style*	Cost Center	Start Time
•	1201.30400	0700
Date*	Reporting Unit	Length (Hours)
02/12/2012	٩	4.00
		Activity Code
		9
		< Back Next >

The Call Off scheduling assistant wizard appears.

- 2. Some fields are filled in for you. Update any prefilled fields and enter the necessary information in the remaining fields.
  - Mode

The Mode should be Call Off. When you start the Call Off wizard, the Mode defaults to Call Off.

### Selection Style

Selection styles are previously set up in **Configuration > Schedule > Selection Styles**, with the Type set to **Scheduling Assistant Call Off**.

Built in to the selection style are the qualifications for each of the passes and the sorting rules. If you set a personal default selection style or the system has a default selection style, this selection style is automatically entered in this field; however, it can be changed.

### • Date, Organization Unit, Profile, Start Time, and Length (Hours)

These fields may be prefilled, based on the cell you highlighted in the balancing grid. These values can be changed.

Activity Code

Search for and select the appropriate activity code. If there are values in the Start Time and Length fields, the values are removed.

### Tip

Use the Start Time and Length fields or the Activity Code field, but not both.

- 3. When all fields are completed, click Next.
- 4. As the process begins, the qualification rules may appear, indicating that field values can be changed.

The availability of these fields depends on whether each field is allowed to be viewed or is hidden, as set up on the Selection Style.

Qualification Rule 2: Overtime Hours - Val	idate employee does not violate overtime rules.	
Daily* True 👻		
Veekly/Bi-weekly*		
True 🔹		
aily Variance - minutes*		
0		
Vkly/Bi-wkly Variance - minutes*		
0		
Qualification Rule 3: Profile Permissions -	All Employees With Permissions To The Specified Profile	

5. Click Next.

6. As the process continues, the sorting rules (how the qualifying employees will be ordered) may appear, indicating that field values can be changed.

The availability of these fields depends on whether each field is allowed to be viewed or is hidden, as set up on the Selection Style.

7. Click Next.

A list of qualified employees appears. Employee names appear under each pass that they qualified for, listed in the order determined by the sorting rules.

Pass 1 - Pass	1 - OT				
eplace/Remove	Last Name	First Name	Activity	Times	Position
	Mueller	Bradley	0700-8	07:00 - 20:30	1201.30400.0120
	Gilmore	Candice	0700-8	07:00 - 15:30	1201.30400.0120
	Holden	Maggie	0700-8	07:00 - 15:30	1201.30400.0120

### Тір

Some employees may qualify for more than one activity code within a pass and for more than one pass.

- 8. If desired, click an employee name to see the employee's contact information.
- 9. For the employees you would like to remove from the schedule, click the drop-down menu in the Replace/Remove column.

Several options appear, such as All, Overlap, Beginning, and End.

If you leave the drop-down menu blank, the employees are not affected by the rest of your actions in the wizard and their schedules are not affected.

leplace/Remove	Last Name	First Name
•	Mueller	Bradley
All	Gilmore	Candice
Overlap 🗟 Beginning	Holden	Maggie

10. Select an option from the menu, depending on whether you want to replace all or part of the schedule with a different activity code or pay code or to remove the schedule from the schedule screen.

Replace/Remove Option	Result*
All	Removes the entire schedule or replaces the entire schedule with a new activity.
Overlap	Removes or replaces the part of the schedule that overlaps the call off time frame selected in step 2.
Beginning	Removes or replaces the part of the schedule that overlaps the call off time frame and removes the part of the schedule that occurs before the call off time frame.
End	Removes or replaces the part of the schedule that overlaps the call off time frame and removes the part of the schedule that occurs after the call off time frame.

\*To determine whether to remove or replace the schedule, the system uses the option you choose in this step along with your decisions in step 12.

- 11. Click Next.
- 12. Enter a replacement Activity Code or Pay Code, or leave the fields blank to remove the original schedule.
  - If you enter a code, all or part of the original schedule will be replaced, based on your selection in step 10.
  - If you leave the fields blank, all or part of the original schedule will be removed, based on your

selection in step 10.

### Тір

For help in understanding your choices, see the following table.

### 13. Click Finish.

The affected employees' schedules are removed or replaced.

The following table explains how the selections you have made throughout the previous steps will affect the original schedule. The Call Off Time Frame in the final column is based on your selection in step 2.

Option Selected in Step 10	Decision Made in Step 12	Result
All	Leave fields blank	Entire schedule is removed
All	Enter an activity or pay code	Entire schedule is changed to the new code
Overlap	Leave fields blank	The part of the original schedule that overlaps the call off time frame is removed, leaving any scheduled time before and after the call off time frame unaffected.
Overlap	Enter an activity or pay code	The part of the original schedule that overlaps the call off time frame is replaced, leaving any scheduled time before and after the call off time frame unaffected.
Beginning	Leave fields blank	The part of the original schedule that overlaps the call off time frame and the time before the call off time frame are removed. Any scheduled time after the call off time frame is not affected.
Beginning	Enter an activity or pay code	The part of the original schedule that overlaps the call off time frame is replaced and the time before the call off time frame is removed. Any scheduled time after the call off time frame is not affected.
End	Leave fields blank	The part of the original schedule that overlaps the call off time frame and the time after the call off time frame are removed. Any scheduled time before the call off time frame is not affected.
End	Enter an activity or pay code	The part of the original schedule that overlaps the call off time frame is replaced and the time after the call off time frame is removed. Any scheduled time before the call off time frame is not affected.

# Apply Staffing Template

The Apply Staffing Template function opens a screen to select and assign a staffing template to the staffing plan for all or part of the open schedule, assuming that a staffing template has not already been applied.

The values set up in the staffing template are replicated to fill all weeks of the schedule. For example, if the staffing template is set up for one week, the template is replicated four times to fill a 4-week schedule.

This option is only available when the schedule for a single organization unit is open; it is hidden when a schedule group is open.

To apply a staffing template to a schedule, complete the following steps:

1. From the tool bar, click **Tasks** and then click **Apply Staffing Template**.

The Apply Staffing Template dialog box appears.

eneral				
itart Date*	02/12/2012			
		Staffing Template Code*	Template 2008	
nd Date*	03/10/2012	Start Week*	1	

- 2. Enter the Start Date and End Date of the date range to have the staffing template reapplied. The start and end dates of the open scheduling period are automatically loaded, but can be changed, as long as they fall within the scheduling period of the open schedule.
  - To apply a staffing template to a date range outside the range of the open schedule, close this screen, open the schedule to a date range which includes the entire date range to apply, and then reopen this function.
  - If the date entered in the Start Date field is earlier than the current date, a message is generated to select which staffing values are updated. See step 7 below for more information.
- 3. The Staffing Template Code value displays the default staffing template, but another template can be selected.

### Note

The Default staffing template is selected on the Staffing Template screen for the open organization unit. For more information, see **Configuration > Scheduling > Staffing Template**.

- 4. The Start Week number indicates which week of the template should be aligned with the first week defined in the Start/End date fields. This number defaults to 1 but can be updated.
- 5. When the fields are all configured, click **Save**.
- 6. If the Start Date field contains a date that is before the current date, the following message appears, "The start date you have entered is in the past. This action may result in overwriting existing data."
  - If **Yes** is selected, the system will apply the values in the Staffing Template to all dates within the selected date range, including dates in the past. Therefore, any staffing values that were previously updated (either manually or by using the Recalculate Staffing Needs wizard) will be overwritten with the Staffing Template values, and the updates will be lost.
  - If **No** is selected, the system will apply the values in the Staffing Template to all dates in the range that fall on or after the current date. Any values in the staffing plan previous to the current date will not be updated. Therefore, any staffing values that were previously modified (either manually or by using the Recalculate Staffing Needs wizard) will not be affected.
  - If **Cancel** is selected, the wizard is closed and no values are updated.
- 7. When the action is complete, the schedule screen is reloaded. The updated staffing template values are accessible from the Balancing Grid section of the schedule.

### Note

From this screen, only existing staffing templates can be loaded to the staffing plan. To manually update any of the values for the staffing plan, go to **Action > Schedule > Staffing Plan**. Open the staffing plan for the required organization unit and scheduling time frame. Click on the **Open Staffing Plan** button, make modifications to the displayed grid and save the record. The values are updated to the schedule needs grid.

# **Open Staffing Plan**

The Open Staffing Plan function opens a screen to view and/or edit the staffing levels needed for each day of the scheduling period. These staffing need values are set up by profile and coverage period.

The baseline (projected) staffing need values for an organization unit are usually loaded from the Staffing Template. The actual staffing need values can be adjusted either before or after the actual scheduling period days.

• The projected staffing needs can be increased for a holiday, based on historical requirements. These adjustments can be made before the schedule population is run to include additional staff. • The actual staffing needs based on patient census and acuity can be adjusted on or after the schedule day by using the Recalculate Staffing Needs wizard. The updated staffing need values are displayed in this Staffing Plan screen.

To open the staffing plan to add, edit, delete, or view the values, complete the following steps:

- 1. Open the Schedule screen to the labor distribution and date range to be adjusted.
- 2. From the tool bar, open the Tasks menu, then the Open Staffing Plan function.

The grid appears showing the profile and coverage period, and the staffing needs set for each day.

3. To change any of the required staffing level values for any days, highlight the cells and type in the new staffing values in whole and decimal numbers.

Profile	Coverage Period	Sunday 01/15	Monday 01/16	Tuesday 01/17	Wednesday 01/18	Thursday 01/19	Friday 01/20	Saturday 01/21	Sunday 01/22	Monday 01/23	Tuesd 01/2
NA-ICU	D07-11	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
NA-ICU	D11-15	1.00	1.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	2.00
NA-ICU	E15-19	1.00	1.00	2. <mark>0</mark> 0	2.00	2.00	2.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	2.00
NA-ICU	E19-23	1.00	1.00	1. <mark>0</mark> 0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
NA-ICU	N23-07	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
RN-ICU	D07-11	7.00	7.00	7.00	7.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	7.00	7.00	7.00
RN-ICU	D11-15	7.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	9.00	9.00	8.00	7.00	8.00	8.00
RN-ICU	E15-19	7.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	9.00	9.00	8.00	7.00	8.00	8.00
RN-ICU	E19-23	7.00	8.00	8.00	8.00	9.00	9,00	8.00	7.00	8.00	8.00
RN-ICU	N23-07	7.00	7.00	7.00	7.00	8.00	8.00	7.00	7.00	7.00	7.00

- 4. To add new profile/coverage period combinations to the plan, complete the following steps
  - a. Click on the bottom line of the plan.
  - b. Select a profile from the drop down menu.
  - c. Select a coverage period from the drop down.
  - d. Enter the staffing needs for each day of the entire scheduling period displayed.
- 5. To delete an entire line in the staffing plan, complete the following steps:

- a. Click the row to highlight the entire line.
- b. Click Delete.
- c. A message appears verifying the deletion should continue. Select Yes.
- 6. When modifications to all fields have been completed, click on the **Save** button.

These new values are automatically loaded to the Balancing Grid.

### Note

To reload the original staffing values after the updates have been saved, click on the **Apply Staffing Template** button in the left pane. Enter the start and end dates of the date range to be restored and the staffing template code to be loaded. For more information, see <u>Apply Staffing</u> <u>Template (on page 47)</u>.

# Recalculate Staffing Needs

The Recalculate Staffing Needs function opens a wizard used to update required staffing levels for an organization unit. You enter actual patient census, based on acuity levels, and the system recalculates the required staffing levels.

Authorized users can also use this screen to manually update the staffing needs for a specific profile, with or without changing the census values.

### Note

The Staffing Distribution screen must be set up to calculate the new staffing levels. This screen is located in the **Configuration > Scheduling > Staffing Configuration > Staffing Distribution** table.

To recalculate the staffing needs of an organization unit, complete the following steps:

- 1. Start the wizard by using one of the following methods.
  - From the tool bar, click **Tasks > Recalculate Staffing Needs**.
  - From the balancing grid, right-click the appropriate cell. From the menu, select **Recalculate Staffing Needs**.

The Recalculate Staffing Needs wizard appears and the organization unit and date are filled in.

Recalculate Staffing Needs With the second secon	zard				×
Recalculate Staffing Needs - C	hoose the organization ur	nit and date that you wis	h to recalculate for:		
Facility					
SJH					
Cost Center	-				
1201.30400					
Reporting Unit					
Date*					
02/12/2012					
				< Back	Next >

2. If needed, update the organization unit and date fields and then click Next.

The next screen of the wizard differs depending on the Census Category selected when you created the organization unit's Staffing Configuration. The Census Categories are:

- Staffing by Lookups
- Staffing by Profile
- Staffing by Hours
- Staffing by Ratios

### Note

The following steps use Staffing by Lookups, since this is the most common Census Category. However, explanations are provided where there are differences if you use one of the other three categories. Most of the steps are the same regardless of the Census Category.

Recalculate Staffing Needs wizard using Staffing by Lookups

calculate Staffing Needs - Enter Recalculation Parameter cility: SJH Cost Center: 1201.30100 Date: 10/19/2011	ers:
DAY	
Calculating Parameters	Reporting Parameters
Census - Acuity 1	Admits - Acuity 1
	Discharges - Acuity 1
NIGHT	

3. For each coverage period, enter the unit's census value for each acuity level in the Calculating Parameters column.

These values are used to recalculate the staffing needs.

### Note

### **Explanations for other Census Categories**

- **Staffing by Profile:** Enter the number of hours for each Profile Group for each acuity level in the Calculating Parameters column. The hours are distributed to each profile based on the Profile Percent Value for each profile within the Profile Group, as configured on the Staffing Distribution table. Note: The profile hours are often calculated by a third-party acuity and patient classification system and may be automatically downloaded into Staffing and Scheduling.
- **Staffing by Hours:** Enter the number of hours for the organization unit for each acuity level in the Calculating Parameters column. The hours are distributed to each profile based on the Profile Percent Value, as configured on the Staffing Distribution table. Note: The hours are often calculated by a third-party acuity and patient classification system and may be automatically downloaded into Staffing and Scheduling.
- Staffing by Ratio: Enter the beginning census and the number of admissions, discharges, and transfers in the Calculating Parameters column. The net census value is multiplied by the Hours Per Patient Day value and then distributed between the coverage periods based on the Coverage Period Percent Value. Then the hours are distributed to each profile based on the Profile Percent Value, as configured on the Staffing Distribution table.
- 4. If there are fields available in the Reporting Parameters column, enter values in each field.

These values are used for reporting purposes only and do not impact the calculation of staffing needs.

5. To add a note to this adjustment, click the **New Note** tab.

The note can be either an existing predefined note or a custom note.

- a. To search for and select a predefined note, click
- b. Enter a Subject.

If a predefined note was selected, the subject is automatically filled in, but it can be changed.

c. In the Body field, enter the text of the note.

If a predefined note was selected, the body text is automatically filled in. If allowed, the text can be changed.

6. Click Next.

The recalculated staffing needs appear for each coverage period and profile.

You may need to open a card by clicking 💽 to view the Adjustment Value and Adjustment Reason

fields.

cility: SJH Cost Center: 1201.30	er adjustments to calculated sta 100 Date: 10/19/2011	ffing needs, if desired. Click Finish to save your changes:	
Coverage Period: DAY	Profile: Nsg. Supervisor	Calculated Need: 5.00 Adjusted Need: 5.00	
Adjustment Value		Adjustment Reason	
Coverage Period: DAY	Profile: PPC Calculated	Need: 5.00 Adjusted Need: 5.00	
Coverage renou. DAT		neta. 5.00 Aujustea neta. 5.00	

### Тір

The following optional step is only used if the recalculated needs do not adequately meet the unit's actual needs. In this situation, you can manually override the recalculated needs.

7. Optional. Enter a value to adjust the needs and enter a reason for the adjustment.

### Note

This value is not the actual need. It is the value needed to get to the new need.

### Example

The recalculated need is now 5.00. But you feel that the need should be 6.00. Enter 1 (not 6).

The recalculated need is now 5.00. But you feel that the need should be 3.00. Enter -2 (not 3).

🙆 Coverage Period: DAY Profile: Nsg. Supervisor	Calculated Need: 5.00 Adjusted Need: 4.00
Adjustment Value	Adjustment Reason
-1	Expect more discharge

### 8. Click Finish.

The Balancing Grid on the schedule screen is updated with the recalculated needs for the selected day.

# **View Calculated Data**

The View Calculated Data option opens a wizard used to generate information about a clocking pair, a schedule, or an adjustment for the selected employee and day.

### Example

For a clocking pair, the details may include the in and out punches for the calculated lunch break, the start of a different pay code, such as a weekend or holiday differential, or a change in labor distribution.

To view the calculated data, complete the following steps:

- 1. In the schedule grid, select a cell for the employee and date for which you would like to view calculated data.
- 2. View the calculated data by using one of the following methods.
  - From the tool bar, click **Tasks > View Calculated Data**.
  - From the balancing grid, click the View Calculated Data tab.

Image shows an example of clocking calculated data

Ba	lancing (	Grid Req	uests (0) E	mployee Sched	lule Exceptions (68)	Activity Balanc	ing Grid View C	alculated Data								
Da	late: 02/04/2011															
En	ployee	Name: Brac	lley Mueller													
Ac	tual Sc	cheduled P	rojected													
s	ource	Overtime	In Date	In Time	Out Date	Out Time	Net Hours	Pay Code	Facility	Depar	tment Job Class	Pay Perio	d Date			
	0		02/04/2011	22:56	02/05/2011	02:00	3.10		SJH	1201.	30400 0120	01/30/20	11			
	٢		02/05/2011	1 02:30	02/05/2011	. 07:48	5.30		SJH	120	1.30400 0120	01/30/2	2011			
	Over	rtime In Dat	e Ir	n Time	Out Date O	ut Time	Net Hours	Pay Code	Direct/Indirect	Facility	Cost Center	Reporting Unit	Job Class	Position	N/P	Cost
		02/05	/2011 0	02:30	02/05/2011 0	7:00	4.50	REG	Direct	SJH	1201.30400		0120	1201.30400.0120	Ρ	\$61.74
		02/05	/2011 0	02:30	02/05/2011 0	7:00	5.00	NGTDIFF	Direct	SJH	1201.30400		0120	1201.30400.0120	Ρ	\$7.50
		02/05	/2011 0	07:00	02/05/2011 0	7:48	0.80	REG	Direct	SJH	1201.30400		0120	1201.30400.0120	Р	\$10.98

Image shows an example of calendar calculated data

A	tual	Scheduled	Projected													
	ourc	e 🔹 Overtime	In Date	In Time	Out Date	Out Time	Net Hours	Pay Code	Facility	Department	Job Class	Pay Perio	d Date			
	1		02/03/20	011 00:00	02/03/	2011 08:00	8.00	BEREXT	SJH	1201.30400	0120	01/30/2	2011			
	C	vertime In Da	ite	In Time	Out Date	Out Time	Net Hours	Pay Code	Direct/Indirect	Facility Co	st Center	Reporting Unit	Job Class	Position	N/P	Cost
		02/0	3/2011	00:00	02/03/2011	07:00	8.00	BEREXT		SJH 12	01.30400		0120	1201.30400.01	20	\$0.00
L																

3. To view additional details, click a row of information to expand it.

### Example

In the previous image of the clocking calculated data, the in punch on 2/4/11 is collapsed, showing summary information. The out punch on 2/5/11 was clicked and is now expanded so that you can see detailed information.

4. As needed, click the other tabs to view additional information.

The following table explains the type of information found on each tab.

Tab	Type of Information
Actual	Displays actual calculated data based on the employee's calendar and clocking information.
Scheduled	Displays the hours calculated by the Time and Attendance Calculations process for only the scheduled hours. Actual clockings are not included in these calculations.
Projected	Displays the hours that are projected by the Time and Attendance Calculations process, based on actual clocking and calendars and future calendars. This would be an employee's total hours, assuming the employee works the hours scheduled to work.
	Projections are only calculated for pay codes that have the Pay Code indicator Calculations Standard 6 set to <b>Yes</b> . Also make sure that organization unit indicator Calculations Standard 4 "Projected Payment Determination" is enabled.

### **Column Explanations**

### Source

The symbol lets you know the type of transaction.

Clocking (either manual or from an input device or badge reader)

End of the second secon

location of the employee at the section of the make an adjustment for the employee at the section of the employee at the section of the secti

### **Overtime**

A check mark appears if the process determines there will be an overtime situation. This occurs for pay codes that are set up to be considered overtime pay codes, that is, those with Pay Code indicator System Standard 2 set to **Yes**.

### In Date

The date that the employee transaction began.

### In Time

The time that the employee transaction began.

### Out Date

The date that the employee transaction ended.

### **Out Time**

The time that the employee transaction ended.

### **Net Hours**

The number of hours between the In Time and the Out Time. For clockings, the Net Hours do not include lunch length.

### **Pay Code**

Displays the pay code associated with the transaction. For calendars, this field usually shows SCHED.

### **Direct/Indirect**

Whether the transaction is considered direct or indirect, as set on the pay code.

### **Organization Unit**

Displays the organization units where the transaction is clocked or scheduled.

### Pay Period Date

The first date of the pay period that this transaction is calculated for.

### Job Class

The work assignment, such as registered nurse, for the transaction.

### Position

The position (the combination of the job class and organization unit) for the transaction.

### N/P

Whether the transaction is considered non-productive or productive, as set on the pay code.

#### Cost

The cost, in dollars, for the time frame shown.

### Set Schedule for Bidding

#### Note

Schedule Incentive is a separate module. If your organization does not have Schedule Incentive, this option will not be visible.

To set a schedule for Schedule Incentive, complete the following steps.

- 1. Open the schedule screen for the appropriate date range and organization unit.
- 2. In the Balancing Grid, select the shifts to be offered through Schedule Incentive.

You can select multiple shifts on multiple days (hold CTRL while clicking) to set up incentives for all shifts at the same time.

### Note

You will only be able to select days that are within the Default Days Before Create parameter on the Staffing Configuration screen.

### Example

The Default Days Before Create parameter is set to 45 days. You will only be able to set up an incentive schedule up to 45 days before the date of the shift. If the shift is 46 days away, you cannot yet set up the incentive schedule.

- 3. Right-click on a selected schedule or click the **Tasks** menu.
- 4. Select Set Schedule for Bidding.

The Incentive Schedule Wizard appears.

Continue creating an incentive schedule by completing the instructions in the following <u>Flat Dollar</u> Method (below) or Percentage Method (on page 60) section.

### Flat Dollar Method

### **General Card**

Many fields in the Schedule Incentive Wizard have information already filled in. This information came from various sources, such as the Staffing Configuration.

📀 General			
Classification*	Flat Dollar 🚽	Close Date*	03/06/2011 💌
Auto Approve *	No	Close Time*	07:00
Facility	100	Shift Count*	2
Department	1005	Start Time	07:00
Unit		Hours/Units	8.00
		Lunch Length	0.50
Activity Code*	0700-8	) Maximum Bid	
Open Date*	03/02/2011 💌	Minimum Bid	
Open Time *	11:53	Increment	

- 1. In the Classification field, select Flat Dollar.
- 2. In the Auto Approve field, select the approval method.

- To allow the employee with the lowest Schedule Incentive offer to automatically receive the schedule when the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **Yes**. The manager does not have to approve the Schedule Incentive request.
- To require the manager to approve the Schedule Incentive request even after the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **No**.
- 3. In the Activity Code field, enter an activity for the incentive schedule.
  - Type an activity code or click 🔍 to select the code from a list.

Only the activity codes configured for Schedule Incentive appear in the list.

4. If needed, enter or update the Open Date, Open Time, Close Date, and Close Time.

These values determine when the shift is available to employees to request.

5. If needed, edit the Shift Count.

This number is the same as the Need on the Balancing Grid. For example, if the Need is 2, the Shift Count is 2.

- 6. The Start Time, Hours/Units, and Lunch Length values default to the values associated with the selected activity code.
- 7. Enter a Maximum Bid or Minimum Bid, which represent the highest or lowest dollar amount acceptable for this incentive schedule.
- 8. Enter an Increment value to indicate the minimum dollar increment that employee Schedule Incentive requests must meet.
- 9. Click Save.

### **Organization Open Dates Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

📀 Organization Open	Dates		
Unit Date		Facility Date	
Unit Time		Facility Time	
Department Date		Processing Unit Date	
Department Time		Processing Unit Time	
Division Date		Organization Date	•
Division Time		Organization Time	

1. Open the **Organization Open Dates** card.

The fields allow you to expand the Schedule Incentive offer to other organization units. This allows other employees to request shifts that were not requested by employees in the original organization unit or shifts with requests that have not yet been approved.

The values indicate the number of days before the shift and the time of day that the shift becomes available to employees to start requesting. The fields may already be filled in with dates and times from the Staffing Configuration. You may fill in empty dates and times or change the dates and times that are already filled in.

2. Click Save.

### **Overrides Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Positions	Assigned Curriculum Code	Curriculum Description
Stations	Position: 100-1005-300 - Regist	ered Nurse (1)
Stations	curriculum	test curriculum
Position Curriculum		
Position Licenses		
Profile Licenses		

1. Open the **Overrides** card.

The fields allow you to expand the pool of employees available to request the incentive schedule by removing restrictions.

The override options, such as Positions or Stations, show what qualifications an employee needs to have to work this shift. However, if you need to expand the pool of employees to fill this shift, you can remove some qualifications. You cannot add qualifications.

### Example

You may want to remove a certain license or educational requirement to increase the number of employees available.

- 2. Click the appropriate override options and then click the boxes to remove the desired requirements.
- 3. Click Save.

### Percentage Method

### **General Card**

Many fields in the Schedule Incentive Wizard have information already filled in. This information came from various sources, such as the Staffing Configuration.

📀 General			
Classification *	Percentage 🔽	Close Date*	03/06/2011 💌
Auto Approve *	No	Close Time *	07:00
Facility	100	Shift Count*	2
Department	1005	Start Time*	07:00
Unit		Hours/Units *	8.00
		Lunch Length*	0.50
Activity Code		Maximum Bid	
Open Date*	03/02/2011 💌	Minimum Bid	
Open Time *	11:53	Increment	

- 1. In the Classification field, select **Percentage**.
- 2. In the Auto Approve field, select the approval method.
  - To allow the employee with the lowest incentive offer to automatically receive the schedule when the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **Yes**. The manager does not have to approve the Schedule Incentive request.
  - To require the manager to approve the Schedule Incentive request even after the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **No**.
- 3. Do not enter an activity code in the Activity Code field.

### Note

Separate activity codes were created, such as SI10, to work with the Percentage method. The system automatically determines the correct activity code to attach to this schedule based on the other entries made in the Schedule Incentive Wizard.

4. If needed, enter or update the Open Date, Open Time, Close Date, and Close Time.

These values determine when the shift is available to employees to request.

5. If needed, edit the Shift Count.

This number is the same as the Need on the Balancing Grid. For example, if the Need is 2, the Shift Count is 2.

6. Enter or edit the Start Time, Hours/Units (the length of the shift), and Lunch Length values.

The Start Time and Lunch Length may default to the values associated with the shift selected for the incentive schedule.

- 7. Enter a Maximum Bid or Minimum Bid, which represent the highest or lowest dollar amount acceptable for this incentive schedule.
- 8. The Increment field is not used with the Percentage method. Leave blank.
- 9. Click Save.

### **Organization Open Dates Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Organization Open Dates			
Unit Date	Facility Date		
Unit Time	Facility Time		
Department Date	Processing Unit Date		
Department Time	Processing Unit Time		
Division Date	Organization Date		
Division Time	Organization Time		

1. Open the Organization Open Dates card.

The fields allow you to expand the Schedule Incentive offer to other organization units. This allows other employees to request shifts that were not requested by employees in the original organization unit or shifts with requests that have not yet been approved.

The values indicate the number of days before the shift and the time of day that the shift becomes available to employees to start requesting. The fields may already be filled in with dates and times from the Staffing Configuration. You may fill in empty dates and times or change the dates and times that are already filled in.

2. Click Save.

### **Overrides Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Positions	Assigne	d Curriculum Code	Curriculum Description
Stations	Posi	ition: 100-1005-300 - Regis	tered Nurse (1)
Stations	<b>V</b>	curriculum	test curriculum
Position Curriculum			
Position Licenses			
Profile Licenses			

1. Open the **Overrides** card.

The fields allow you to expand the pool of employees available to request the incentive schedule by removing restrictions.

The override options, such as Positions or Stations, show what qualifications an employee needs to have to work this shift. However, if you need to expand the pool of employees to fill this shift, you can remove some qualifications. You cannot add qualifications.

### Example

You may want to remove a certain license or educational requirement to increase the number of employees available.

- 2. Click the appropriate override options and then click the boxes to remove the desired requirements.
- 3. Click Save.

### Link to Employees

The Link to Employees function opens the portal to the employee record section. Authorized users can then view or edit any of the information in the employee record.

- The records of all the employees included in the open schedule grid are opened.
- If a filter is applied when this function is selected, only the employees included in the filter are opened.
- The employee records are displayed in the order that they are listed on the schedule screen.

You can move between the open employee records using the arrows in the Employee Navigator.

### Note

To open the record of a single employee, highlight the employee name, right-click and select the **Link to Employee** option from that menu. This action can be done multiple times with different employees, creating a group of employees in the portal that you can navigate through.

# Help Menu Options

The Help menu opens a screen to view a Legend of the icons used in the schedule grid, to access the online help file, and also to view the About screen, which gives release information about the software and trademark and copyright information.

# Legend

The Legend option displays the icons that are shown in the schedule grid.

	Employee Has Schedule Exceptions
шш	Unavailablity Transaction
	Unavailablity Request Pending
<b>()</b>	Recurring Unavailability Transaction
10	Recurring Unavailability Pending
6	Request To Work Pending
PTO	Calendar Transaction
-	Calendar Request Pending
	Schedule Offer Request
-	Trade Request Pending
4	Shift Bidding
ED	Instructor Assignment
ED	Education Transaction
ED	Education Request Pending

# Help

Click on the Help option to open the online help documentation for this feature.

The online help contains overview information of the screens, step by step directions for actions, an index, and a search screen to search for topics.

For more information on the features and functionality available in this file, see <u>Help Menu Options (on</u> <u>the previous page)</u>.

## About

The About option opens a screen which shows the version release of the software. The copyright and trademark information are also displayed.

# **Scheduling Period Navigator**

The Scheduling Period Navigator can be used to go to the next scheduling period or to the previous scheduling period for the open organization unit. The start and end dates of the scheduling period that is currently open is displayed.

• To go to the next scheduling period, click on the arrow pointing to the right

To go to the previous scheduling period, click on the arrow pointing to the left a.

To view a schedule for a different organization unit or schedule group, from the tool bar, open the **Schedule** menu, then the **Open** option. A screen is displayed to search for and select the schedule.

# **Employee Information**

The Employee Information area displays the employee names and other selected information. These columns of information can be displayed on the schedule grid, or as a tool tip (when the cursor is hovered over the employee name), or both.

• The employee columns that are displayed are selected on the Show/Hide Details screen accessed from the right-click menu. Columns can be resized by dragging the column dividers.

### Tip

Click a column header to re-sort the information by that column. Press <CTRL> and click column headers to sort by multiple columns.

- Employee names can be separated by Group Headers to divide them into groups with the same job class, shift, employee class, home distribution, or employee status.
- Employee Schedule Exception icon

If you do not see the Exceptions column, you can add it. For information, see <u>Show/Hide Details (on</u> the next page).

This symbol indicates that the employee has at least one schedule exception. Schedule exceptions, such as violations to minimum scheduling rules, are determined by the Schedule Period Validation selection style.

The Employee Schedule Exceptions tab near the bottom displays all the employees who have exceptions. If you click (a) on an employee row, the Employee Schedule Exceptions tab displays

only the exceptions for the selected employee and the employee's name is entered in the filter box. To remove the filter to view all the employee exceptions, click the **X** in the filter box.

# Group Headers (Employee Information Section)

The Group Headers are displayed in the Employee Information area to separate employees into groups. These groups can be by job class, shift, employee class, home distribution, or employee status. The user may choose not to use any headers (none) so all employees are sorted together.

- Group headers are selected from a menu accessed by right-clicking. Select the <u>Group By (on the</u> <u>next page)</u> option to display a listing of options.
- The groups can be expanded to show the employees in that group or they can be collapsed to hide them. Clicking on the header alternately expands (shows) and collapses (hides) the employees in the group. The number of records contained in a group is displayed in parentheses after the group name.
- You can drag a group to a different spot in the list so that you can have commonly-used groups near the top. The new group order remains the next time you open the Schedule screen.

• Within a group, you can drag an employee to a different spot in the employee list so that you can have, for example, charge nurses or supervisors near the top. The new employee order remains the next time you open the Schedule screen.

If you had added a row separator (see <u>Add Row Separator (on page 71)</u>), the row separator remains with the employee, even as you move that employee or other employees to different spots. Because of this, after moving an employee to a different spot, you may need to remove the existing row separator and add a new one in the desired location.

# **Employee Information Right-Click Menu**

Additional options are available for customizing the Employee Information area. A menu is accessed by right-clicking within the Employee Information area.

# Group By

The Group By option opens a screen where the user can select the header for grouping the employee names.

To access this menu, position the cursor in the employee information section and right-click.

Select the group option from the menu by clicking one of the following options:

Job Class	Groups employees by the Job Class Code entered in their Primary Home Labor Distribution screen in the employee record, such as RN, LPN, or Cook.
	The headers will display the Job Class abbreviation if one is set up on Job Class Parameter System Standard Alpha 1. They will display the job class number if no abbreviation is set up.
Shift	Groups employees by the Shift Code entered in their Primary Home Labor Distribution screen in the employee record, such as 1st, 2nd, or 3rd.
Employee Class	Groups employees by the Employee Class Code entered in the Primary Home Labor Distribution screen in the employee record, such as Full Time, Part Time, or Temp.
Home Distribution	Groups employees by the Organization Unit Code entered in their Primary Home Labor Distribution screen in the employee record, such as facility 06-Department 2030.
Status	Groups employees by the Status Code entered in their Primary Home Labor Distribution screen in the employee record, such as Active, Inactive, Terminated.

## Show/Hide Details

The Show/Hide Details option opens a screen for you to select which columns to display in the Employee Information area and/or in a tool tip that appears when the cursor is hovered over the employee name.

### Тір

Click a column header to re-sort the information by that column. Press <CTRL> and click column headers to sort by multiple columns.

To select the employee information columns that appear, complete the following steps.

- 1. Position the cursor in the Employee Information area.
- 2. Right-click and select the **Show/Hide Details** option.

The following dialog box appears.

Field Name	Display In List	Display In Popup	
xceptions	-	✓	
ull Name		✓	
Preferred Name			
Last	<b>~</b>		
First	<b>~</b>		
Code	<b>~</b>		
Sen. Date	1		
Sen. Hrs			
Shift	~		
Cohod Her			

3. To select an option, click the box to the right of the option.

You need to have at least one option selected.

- To include the field in the Employee Information area, check the box in the **Display in List** column.
- To include the field in the tool tip, check the box in the **Display in Popup** column.
- To include the field in both the Employee Information area and the tool tip, check the box in both columns.

### Тір

The Info option indicates one of the following situations: the employee is a relief employee, the employee does not have position permissions, or the employee has a termination date before or during the current scheduling period. The employee information flag **F** appears on the schedule screen in the Info column.

4. When finished, click **Close** to save the selections.

## Add Employees

Click on the **Add Employees** option to open a screen to search for and select employees to be added to the schedule.

### Note

You can search only for employees you have access to.

Once the employee name is added to the schedule, the user can schedule activities for the employee.

mployee	
First Name	
Last Name	
Code	
Relief employee	
Facility	9
Cost Center	9
Profile	9
Show relief-only employees	5
	Searc

# Create Employee Schedule

The Create Employee Schedule function opens a wizard used to run the scheduling process for a single employee.

To create an employee schedule, complete the following steps:

1. Click the name of the employee whose schedule you are creating.

The employee row is highlighted.

### Tip

If you do not click an employee name first, the first employee listed on the schedule screen is automatically selected.

2. From the tool bar, click **Schedule > Create Employee Schedule**.

The Create Employee Schedule wizard appears.

Create Schedule Wizard		×
Create Employee Schedule Selected Employee: Frances T	vnsend	
Start Date* 02/12/2012	Selection Style*	
End Date* 03/10/2012	Create Schedule Audit Report*	
	< Back	Finish

- 3. Some fields are filled in for you. Update any prefilled fields and enter the necessary information in the remaining fields.
  - Start Date and End Date

The dates for the open schedule period appear but can be changed; however, both dates must fall within the open schedule period.

Selection Style

The default Selection Style appears, but a different one can be selected.

Create Schedule Audit Report

This option, when set to **Yes**, generates a report that tracks whether the employee was scheduled and any reasons that disqualified the employee from being scheduled. This report is viewed in the **Reports > Scheduling > Create Schedule Audit Report**.

4. Click Finish.

When the process finishes, the schedule screen is updated with the results of the scheduling process.

# Link To Employee

The Link to Employee option opens up the employee record in the portal. This allows the user to add, edit, or view employee information. This action can be done multiple times with different employees, creating a group of employees in the portal that you can navigate through.

### Note

The records of all the employees in the schedule (or only those included in a filter) can be accessed by selecting the **Tasks** menu in the tool bar, then clicking on the <u>Link to Employees (on page 63)</u> function. This action clears any previously selected single employee or group of employees.

# Validate Employee Schedule

This options allows you to validate employee schedules immediately. Validations in the balancing grid at bottom of screen update every minute.

### Add Row Separator

The Add Row Separator option is used to insert a line on the Schedule screen. This can be used as a visual separator within the schedule grid (for instance, between full time and part time employees).

If you add a row separator, it remains with the employee, even as you move that employee or other employees to different spots in the employee list (see <u>Group Headers (Employee Information Section)</u> (on page 66). Because of this, after moving an employee to a different spot, you may need to remove the existing row separator (see <u>Remove Row Separator (below)</u>) and add a new one in the desired location.

## **Remove Row Separator**

The Remove Row Separator option is used to remove a row separator that was previously inserted on the Schedule screen. This option is only enabled when the row above the separator is selected or you right-click on the row above.

# Schedule Grid

The Schedule Grid section displays the pending and published activities, classes, unavailability, calendars for each employee with a valid labor distribution record in the open record. This includes primary home, alternate home, and/or alternate labor distribution records.

- The Employee Information area displays selected information, such as employee name, phone number, approved hours, or scheduled hours. This information is selected from a menu displayed by a right-click when the cursor is in the section.
- The Group Headers can be set up to group employees by job class, shift, employee class, home distribution, or employee status.
- The <u>Date Headers (on page 78)</u> display the day of the week and the date for each day in the open schedule. If the date is a holiday, the holiday name replaces the day of week.
- The <u>Schedule Cells (below)</u> display the scheduled activities, education tracking classes, unavailability/recurring unavailability, or calendars. for each employee, for each day of the open schedule.

# Schedule Cells

There is an individual schedule cell for each day, for each employee. The schedule cells display the scheduled activities, unavailability, and education tracking classes for each day.

### **Scheduled Activity Boxes**

The individual boxes within the schedule cells show the scheduled assignment for that day. The following may be displayed on a schedule:

lcon	Туре	Description
0700-8 0700-8	Published Schedule • Transparent	Depending on the Style selected, a published schedule is either indicated by a bold border and font or by the activity box being filled in with the selected activity color.
	Style <ul> <li>Solid Style</li> </ul>	To change the style, go to the tool bar, then open the <b>View</b> menu, then the <b>Style</b> option. Select either the <b>Transparent Style</b> or the <b>Solid Style</b> .
0700-8	Pending Schedule	The muted border and font indicate that this schedule is pending.
D8-0645	Alternate Schedule	The heavy border on the left side of the schedule box indicates the employee is scheduled in an organization that is not included in the open schedule screen. Hover the cursor over the schedule box to display a tool tip with the details about the schedule, including the organization unit and profile assignments.
lcon	Туре	Description
----------------	--	--
0700-12	Highlighted Schedule	The gold coloring indicates this schedule is highlighted. Schedules are selected for highlighting from <b>Tool Bar &gt; View &gt; Highlight&gt;</b> <b>Activities</b> , then choose the type of activities to be highlighted.
2300-08	Overtime Schedule	The red background indicates that this schedule will cause the employee to incur overtime. If schedules are projected in the future, this gives the scheduler time to reschedule the employee before he/she actually incurs overtime.
	Cursor Focus on an Empty Cell	The dark gray border indicates that the focus has been set on this empty cell.
1500-8	Cursor Focus on a Filled Cell	The gray border around the outside of the scheduled activity box indicates the focus is set on this cell.
SICK	Calendar Entry	The black, oval shaped icon indicates a calendar. The calendar code is displayed in the center.
ED ED ED	Education Tracking Class Instructor Approved Requested	The gray, oval shaped icon indicates the employee is enrolled in an education tracking class on this day. ED is displayed on the icon. Hover the cursor over the icon to display a tool tip with information on the class.
Extra	Extra Shift	The Extra Shift indicator determines whether a shift is an extra shift or a regular shift.          Note         The Extra Shift indicator is only displayed for pending/published schedules.
*	Unavailability • Approved • Requested	The green bar indicates the employee has an unavailability request on the day(s) it is displayed. If there is a yellow star on the bar, this is a pending request.
10 10 😒	Recurring Unavailability • Approved • Requested	The green bar with a circling arrow indicates the employee has a recurring unavailability request on the day(s) it is displayed. If there is a yellow star on the bar, this is a pending request.
<b>\$</b>	Schedule Incentive Request	This icon indicates that the employee has submitted a schedule incentive bid for the day.

### **Formatting Options of Cells**

The information that is displayed within the scheduled activity box can be formatted to display one of the following options. The following show the information that is displayed for the same schedule.

Option	Example	Description
Activity	0700-8	Shows the scheduled activity code only.
Activity Profile	0700-8 RN-3N	Shows the activity code and the profile of the schedule.
Times	07:00 - 15:30	Shows the starting and ending times of the schedule.
Times Profile	07:00 - 15:30 RN-3N	Shows the starting and ending times and the profile of the schedule.

## Schedule Filters

A filter can be created and applied to limit the employees displayed in the screen. The filters can be by information in the schedules or employee information. For example, a filter can be applied to display only the RN's who are scheduled for activities that provide coverage on the day shift.

The schedule filter section is found at the top of the screen on the right side.



When a filter is loaded, only employees meeting the conditions of the filter are displayed. If the **Highlight Matched Results** check box is checked, the schedules that meet the filter criteria are highlighted in gold.

									Showing 45 of 63 Employees
	>	/latch Any 🔻	Job Cla	ss	•	Equal To	•	RN	
			Activity	Code	•	Equal To	•	0700-8	👻 📖 🗕 🕂 Apply Filter
dav Tu									Highlight matched results Clear Filter
30 (	01/21	02/01	ULIUL	02/03	0210	- 02303 0	2700 02		02/03 02/10 02/11 A
			1						
0	700-8	0700-8	0700-8	0700-8			-		

### **Filter Icons**

The following icons are displayed on the Filter section:

lcon	Туре	Description
>	Expand/Collapse Filter Options	Click on this icon to display or hide the fields to add criteria to the schedule filter.
+	Add a New Condition	Click this icon to add a line for entering a filter condition. For more information on filtering conditions, see <u>Creating a New Schedule Filter</u> (below).
-	Clear/Remove Condition	Click this icon to remove the condition line to the left of this icon.
	Look Up Values	Click on this icon to open a menu of valid values for the selected field.
S.	Load Filter	Click on this icon to view a drop down menu of existing filters. Click on the filter name to load that filter.
×	Delete Filter	Click on this icon to view a listing of existing filters. Click on the filter name to delete that filter.
14	Save Filter	Click on this icon to save the filter. A box will display to enter a name for this filter.

## Creating a New Schedule Filter

New schedule filters can be created by authorized users. These filters can be saved and used again.

To create a new schedule filter, complete the following steps:

- 1. With the schedule screen open, navigate to the upper right side of the screen.
- 2. Click on the expand icon < to display the fields for setting up a new filter.

			ly Field Condition Field Values Il Selector Operator	
			🖙 🗙 🛃 Showing	All 63 Employees
•	Contains	-		-
•	Contains	•	. •	- + Apply Filter
			Highlight matched	results Clear Filter
	4	Contains Contains	I Contains  Contains Contains	Image: Contains     Image: Contains       Image: Contains     Image: Contains

- 3. In the Field Selector field, click on the icon to display the menu options for this field.
  - Select the field to include in the filter from the menu. This field may be from the employee schedule or from the employee record.
  - If the **Any Field** option is chosen, any of the fields in this menu can match with the values set up in the Field Values field.
  - Note that the Coverage Period filter only shows schedules that count toward coverage during the selected coverage period. For example, a productive schedule that overlaps the coverage period would appear, but a PTO calendar would not.
- 4. In the Condition Operator field, open the menu and select the option to determine how the field criteria needs to be met.

The following lists the operator options.

### Note

Some fields only allow a certain operator, such as Equal To. This operator is then automatically assigned and cannot be updated.

Operator	Description
Contains	The employee or schedule must include the value entered in the Field Value field. For example, if the Field Selector is Job Class and the user types "nurse" in the Field Value field, the filter will include all job classes that have "nurse" in the description.
Equal To	The employee or schedule must match one of the values selected in the Field Value field.
Begins With	The value in the Field Selector begins with the letters or numbers entered in the Field Values field.
Does Not Contain	This operator is used to exclude certain employees or schedules that contain the value entered in the Field Values field. For example, if the Field Selector is set to <b>Activity Code</b> and 12 is entered in the Field Value field, the listing would exclude schedules with the value 12 in the code or description.
Does Not Equal	This operator is used to exclude employees or schedules which have selected values, such as an activity code or job class. The excluded values are selected from the menu in the Field Value field.

- 5. In the Field Values field, enter the criteria to determine which schedules are included in the filter.
  - Values can either be typed, or can be selected from the menu by clicking on the Look Up icon
     to the right of the field.
  - If more than one value is selected, any of those values will create a match for the filter.

• The options displayed in the menu depend on the Field Option selected. For example, if the Job Class field option is selected, the options that display on the Field Values menu will be job classes for the open organization unit.

				©×4	Showing All 63 Employees
> Match Any 💌	Job Class	-	Equal To	RN	
	Coverage Period	•	Equal To	D07-11	- + Apply Filter
				💟 D07-11 - Day-1st half	erults Clear Filter
hor ortor	04692 V4692	<i>72</i> 70-1	- 02103 <u>02100</u> 0230	" 🔲 D11-15 - Day-2nd half	
				E15-19 - Evening-1st ha	alf

### Note

When using the operators Contains, Begins With, and Does Not Contain, the user can type in a part of the value to be matched. When using operators such as Equal To or Does Not Equal, the match must be exact, and so it is recommended the field values are selected from the menu. See the Operator Values above for examples.

- 6. Click on the **Add a New Condition** icon **[1**] to add another criteria option.
- 7. When there is more than one condition, an additional box displays to the left to determine whether the schedules must meet all the conditions (Match All) or any one of the conditions (Match Any) to be included in the filter results.
- 8. Repeat steps 3 through 5 to add additional criteria options.
- 9. To remove a condition, click on the **Clear/Remove Condition** icon to the right of the condition

line.

- 10. When all conditions have been added, click on the **Save** icon with the top of the screen to save this filter.
- 11. A box is displayed to enter a name for the filter. After entering a name, click on the **Save** button in this box.
- 12. Click on the **Apply Filter** button to load this filter to the schedule screen. Only employees who meet the criteria are listed.
  - If the **Highlight matched results** box is checked, the schedules that meet the conditions are highlighted. All other schedules for qualifying employees are not highlighted.
  - If the Highlight matched results box is not checked, all schedules are displayed the same.

## Selecting and Applying a Schedule Filter

An existing filter can be loaded to the schedule screen to limit the employees who are displayed.

To load and view an existing filter, complete the following steps:

- 1. In the upper right area of the schedule screen, locate the schedule filter section.
- 2. Click on the Load Filter icon .

A listing of existing filters is displayed.

3. Select the filter by clicking on it. The filter is loaded to the screen, and the conditions of the filter can be viewed.

						🖙 🗙 😽 Showing 45 of 63 Employee
>	Match Any	Job Class	•	Equal To	✓ RN	-
		Activity Code	•	Equal To	• 0700-8	+ Apply Filt
						Highlight matched results Clear Filt
01. 01.	02/01	ULIUL ULIU.			2,00 02,01 02,00	02/05 02/10 02/11
0700-	8 0700-8	0700-8 0700	8			

4. Only employees who meet the criteria are listed in the schedule grid. The number of employees included in the filter is displayed at the top of the filter box.

Showing 45 of 63 Employees

- If the **Highlight matched results** box is checked, the schedules that meet the conditions are highlighted. All other schedules for qualifying employees are not highlighted.
- If the Highlight matched results box is not checked, all schedules are displayed the same.
- 5. To remove the filter and display all the employees, click on the **Clear Filter** button.

## **Date Headers**

The Date Headers are displayed at the top of the schedule grid and also at the top of the Balancing Grid.

- The date headers display the day of the week and the calendar date.
- The date headers of weekends are highlighted in a darker shade.

Friday	Saturday	Sunday	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thanksg	Day Aft	Saturday
11/21	11/22	11/23	11/24	11/25	11/26	11/27	11/28	11/29

• The date headers of holidays display the name of the holiday instead of the day of the week. They are also highlighted in a different shade.

### Note

These holidays are defined in **Configuration > Assignments > Holidays**.

Sunday	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thanksg	Day Aft	Saturday
11/23	11/24	11/25	11/26	11/27	11/28	11/29

• If a schedule note has been attached to a day, an icon is displayed in the date header.

Wednesday Thursday	Friday 9	Saturday	Sunday	Monday
11/12 11/13	11/14	11/15	11/16	

To view the schedule notes, from the tool bar, select the **View** menu, then the **Schedule Notes** option. All the schedule notes attached to days in the open schedule are displayed.

## **Scroll Bars**

There is often too much information within the schedule window to be able to view it all at once. Scroll Bars are used to adjust the view of information that is displayed, so the user can view certain information on the screen.

### Vertical Scroll Bars

Vertical scroll bars are available to the right of the schedule grid and the balancing grid. To adjust the view, position the cursor on the scroll bar. Drag the bar up or down to display the desired information in the window.

- The upper scroll bar adjusts the view within the schedule grid window.
- The lower scroll bar adjusts the view within the balancing grid window.

### **Horizontal Scroll Bars**

The horizontal scroll bar is available between the schedule grid and the balancing grid. To adjust the view, position the cursor on the scroll bar. Drag the bar left or right to display the information in the window.

### << 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 1 2 30 1 2 30 1 2 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 > >> Week

In addition to the scroll bar, a scroll map helps you to visualize which dates you are seeing within the schedule period and to quickly view another set of days. Select a day or an arrow button to move. The time frame you are viewing is shown in a lighter color.

To change to a scroll map that shows weeks instead of days, click the **Week** button on the right. Switch between the scroll maps as needed by clicking the Day or Week button. When you are viewing more than 6 weeks on the screen, the Day/Week button is not available and you only see the scroll map in weeks.

_						_		
<<	<	19 - 25	26 - 2	3 - 9	10 - 16	>	>>	Day

## Schedule Grid Functions

The information in the cells within the Schedule Grid can be modified. Schedules can be cut and pasted, copied, swapped, added, published, deleted, or have a note attached.

The options that are available for editing the employee schedule grid can be accessed by right-clicking. The following menu is displayed.

×	Cut	Ctrl+X
	Сору	Ctrl+C
	Swap From	Ctrl+W
2	Paste	Ctrl+V
	Reset Clipboard Data	
Q.	Add New Code	Ctrl+N
	Add Note	Ctrl+T
1	Publish	Ctrl+U
C	Audit History	Ctrl+H
×	Delete	Del
	Format	•

These options can also be accessed through the tool bar at the top of the screen in the Edit menu.

## **Adding New Schedules**

Adding activity codes and pay codes can be done in several different ways, each with its own advantage. See the subsections below this list for details.

- **Type the activity code or pay code.** This method is the quickest way to add a schedule, but requires you to know the codes and the format required for typing them.
- Use the Add New Code option. This method is good if you are used to using the tool bar and menu options.
- **Double-click a cell.** This method is good when you do not know or remember certain details, like a code, because you can search for information. This method is also good when you need to alter a schedule beyond what you can do by typing it. However, with this method, you can only work in one cell at time.

### Type the activity code

• Add an activity by clicking a cell and typing the activity code. For example, type **0700-8** and press Enter.

To change the employee's default profile, type the activity code, a delimiter, and the profile code. For example, type **0700-8 CH** to change from the default RN profile to a Charge profile.

• Delimiters are characters that separate strings of text or numbers. Delimiters can be spaces, commas, or semicolons.

Examples: 0700-8 CH or 0700-8,CH or 0700-8;CH

• You can add an activity to a multiple cells at one time. First, select the range of cells and then type the activity code.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

### Type the pay code

• Add a pay code by clicking a cell and typing the pay code, start time, and length in hours (all separated by delimiters). For example, type **PTO 0000 24** (for PTO starting at midnight and lasting 24 hours) and press Enter.

Leading zeros and colons in the time are not required. For example, these are all acceptable entries: 0700, 07:00, 700, and 7:00

A decimal point in the hours value is allowed. For example, these are all acceptable entries: 8, 8.0, 8.5, and 8.50

 Delimiters are characters that separate strings of text or numbers. Delimiters can be spaces, commas, or semicolons.

Examples: PTO 0000 24 or PTO,0000,24 or PTO;0000;24

• You can add a pay code to a multiple cells at one time. First, select the range of cells and then type the pay code details.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

### Use the Add New Code option

To add a new code to one or more cells, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the appropriate cell or cells .

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to add schedule:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Add New Code. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Add New Code option.

The outline of an activity box is shown in the cell.

- 3. Type the activity code or pay and press Enter.
  - Activity code: enter the activity code, such as 0700-8

To change the employee's default profile, type the activity code, a delimiter, and the profile code. For example, type **0700-8 CH** to change from the default RN profile to a Charge profile.

• Pay code: enter the pay code, start time, and length in hours (all separated by delimiters), such as **PTO 0000 24** (for PTO starting at midnight and lasting 24 hours)

Leading zeros and colons in the time are not required. For example, these are all acceptable entries: 0700, 07:00, 700, and 7:00

A decimal point in the hours value is allowed. For example, these are all acceptable entries: 8, 8.0, 8.5, and 8.50

Delimiters are characters that separate strings of text or numbers. Delimiters can be spaces, commas, or semicolons.

Examples: 0700-8 CH or PTO,0000,24 or PTO;0000;

### **Double-click a cell**

Double-clicking a cell opens a schedule dialog box. This is useful if you want to search for an activity code, to assign a different profile than the default, or to enter different start and end times than the original activity code.

Some of the information in this screen is already defaulted from the schedule screen, and other information is defaulted once the activity code is filled in. The defaulted information can be left or replaced with different values. Type in the value or click the search icon to open a menu of valid options to

select for the field.

To add a new schedule using the schedule dialog box, complete the following steps:

1. Double-click in a cell.

The schedule dialog box appears.

ending Schedule fo	r Sergio Gonzalez		
Schedule O Ca	alendar	(* Asterisks indicate	required fields.)
Activity Code*	٩		
<ul> <li>General</li> </ul>			
Date* 01	/27/2021	Extra Shift*	Yes 💌
Time*	00:00	Rate	
Hours/Units*			
Lunch Length (Hou	rs)		
<ul> <li>Scheduled Labor Dis</li> </ul>	tribution		
Facility*	SJ 🔍	Position*	٩
Cost Center*	1201.3	Profile*	٩
Reporting Unit	٩	Grant	٩
		Project	٩
<ul> <li>Notes</li> </ul>			
Publish this a	ctivity when saving	) 📃	Save Cancel

- 2. Select the option to indicate whether this is for a **Schedule** (activity code) or for a **Calendar** (pay code).
- 3. Update any pre-filled information, and enter or search for the details to complete the needed fields.

4. To add a note to this schedule, expand the Notes section.

<ul> <li>Notes</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Notes History</li> </ul>	/
Predefined Note Code	
Subject	
Body	

- 5. A Predefined Note Code can be selected to automatically load subject and body information.
- 6. If a predefined note is not selected, enter a **Subject** for the title of this note. In the **Body** field, enter the free-form text for information regarding this note.
- 7. Select the **Publish this activity when saving** option to automatically launch the publishing process for this schedule.

If this is not selected, the schedule remains pending.

8. When all fields are complete, click on the **Save** button to save this schedule and close this box.

## Handling Validation Errors

After saving a new schedule, if selection style validation errors occur, a Validation Messages dialog appears.

Decide whether it is appropriate to continue. If so, click **Approve**. The schedule is saved.

If there are changes you need to make to eliminate the errors or to select a different employee to work the shift, click **Cancel**. The schedule is not saved.

## Moving Employee Schedules Using the Drag-and-Drop Method

Employee schedules can be easily moved from one cell to another using the "drag-and-drop" method. Schedules can be moved either to the same employee or to another employee.

To move a schedule using the drag-and-drop method, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be moved.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to cut only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Hold the Shift key and drag the highlighted cell to the cell where the schedule should be moved.
- 3. Release the mouse button and key.

The schedule is moved to the new cell.

## **Cutting and Pasting Employee Schedules**

The Cut and Paste options allow you to remove a schedule from one or more cells and then paste it in another cell for the same or different employee. You can continue to paste this same schedule into as many cells as needed.

### Note

If you paste into a cell that already has a schedule, the behavior of the original schedule is determined by indicator SS Application: SS Solution Standard 5, "Determines the copy and paste method used by the Schedule screen".

If the indicator is set to:

- A the new schedule is appended, leaving the original schedule in place.
- **O** the new schedule overwrites (deletes) the original schedule.

To cut and paste employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be cut (removed).

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to cut only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to cut schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Cut. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Cut option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-X.
- 3. Highlight the cell where the schedules should be pasted.

- 4. Use one of following methods to paste schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Paste. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Paste option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-V.

The schedule you cut is now assigned to the highlighted cells.

## Copying and Pasting Employee Schedules

Copying schedules can be done with cut and paste, or by the drag and drop method.

### **Cut and Paste**

The Copy and Paste options allow you to make a duplicate of one or more employee schedules and then to paste in another cell for the same or different employee. The copied schedules will have the same assignment information as the original, such as activity code or profile. You can paste this same schedule into as many cells as needed.

### Note

If you paste into a cell that already has a schedule, the behavior of the original schedule is determined by indicator SS Application: SS Solution Standard 5, "Determines the copy and paste method used by the Schedule screen".

If the indicator is set to:

- A the new schedule is appended, leaving the original schedule in place.
- **O** the new schedule overwrites (deletes) the original schedule.

To copy and paste employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, click the cell or cells with the schedules to be copied.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to copy only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to copy schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Copy. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Copy option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-C.
- 3. Highlight the cell where the schedules should be pasted.

- 4. Use one of following methods to paste schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select Paste. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Paste option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Ctrl-V.

The schedule you copied is now assigned to the highlighted cells.

### **Drag and Drop Method**

Employee schedules can be easily copied from one cell to another using the "drag-and-drop" method. Schedules can be copied either to the same employee or to other employees. The copied schedule will have the same assignment information as the original, such as activity code or profile.

### Note

If you drag into a cell that already has a schedule, the behavior of the original schedule is determined by indicator SS Application: SS Solution Standard 5, "Determines the copy and paste method used by the Schedule screen".

If the indicator is set to:

- **A**, the new schedule is appended, leaving the original schedule in place.
- **O**, the new schedule overwrites (deletes) the original schedule.

To drag and drop a schedule, complete the following steps.

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be copied.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to copy only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

2. Drag the cursor to the cell where the schedules should be copied.

The schedules are copied to the new cell.

### **Deleting an Employee Schedule**

The Delete function is used to remove an employee schedule from the grid. Deleted schedules cannot be pasted.

To delete employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be deleted.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to delete only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

- 2. Use one of following methods to delete schedules:
  - Right-click to display the menu and select **Delete**. OR
  - From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Delete option. OR
  - On the keyboard, press Delete.

The schedule is deleted.

### Editing an Existing Schedule

An existing pending or published schedule can be modified. To edit an existing schedule, complete the following steps:

1. Double-click the schedule that you want to edit.

Make sure you double-click the schedule. If you double-click in the cell, the resulting dialog box assumes you are trying to add a new schedule.

The schedule dialog box appears.

### Note

If any element, such as Profile, Position, Activity Code, Organization Unit, or Job Class, has been set to inactive since the schedule was initially created, another window appears explaining what has been made Inactive. Before saving, you will need to correct the inactive element by selecting an active option.

- 2. Make the necessary updates.
  - If the Activity Code is changed, the Time, Hours/Unit, and Lunch Length (Hours) fields default to the values of the related activity code.
  - If the Organization Unit is changed, the Position and Profile fields must be changed to values which exist in the updated organization unit.
- 3. To add or update a note to this schedule, expand the **Notes** section.
- 4. Select the **Publish this activity when saving** option to automatically launch the publishing process for this schedule.

If this is not selected, the schedule remains pending.

5. When all fields are complete, click on the **Save** button to save this schedule and close this box.

### Note

If an inactive element has not been corrected, a window appears to alert you. Make the required correction before saving.

## **Publishing Highlighted Schedules**

The Publish function is used to publish (post) selected schedules on the Schedule screen.

### Note

To publish all the schedules in the open schedule period, go to Schedule > Publish Schedule

To publish one or more employee schedules, complete the following steps:

1. In the schedule grid, highlight the cell or cells with the schedules to be published.

If a cell has more than one schedule and you want to publish only one of them, click the schedule itself to highlight it.

A range of cells can be selected by holding Shift as you click or by clicking and dragging. These cells can span multiple days in a row and across multiple employees. Alternatively, click an employee's name to select all the days for that employee, or click a day in the date header to select all the employees for that day.

2. Use one of following methods to publish schedules:

Note that the Publish option is available only when there is at least one pending schedule in the selected cells.

- Right-click to display the menu and select Publish. OR
- From the tool bar, select the Edit menu, then the Publish option. OR
- On the keyboard, press Ctrl-U.

The schedules are now published and appear with bolder borders around them.

## Approve or Deny a Schedule Incentive Request

	Sc	hedule Incer	ıtive	-	
Status:	Open				
Transaction Date:	06/22/2011 07:00:0	0 When	Close:	06/21/	2011 23:00:00
Organization Unit:	1201.30400	Total	Bids:	1	
Profile:	RN-ICU	Activi	ty:	0700-8	3
Minimum Bid:		Maxin	num Bid:		
Select an individual e	mployee bid in the	list to approve	or deny it		
Status Bi	id First Name	Last Name 🔺	Date Subr	nitted	Reviewer Commer
Requested 100.0	0 Anna	Barker	June 14, 201	1 08:02:0	
Approve	eny 🔸				
4	ш				Þ
Reviewer Comments:					
Approve Den	y Delete	Set Pending R	eview	S	ave Close

- 1. Open the schedule screen for the appropriate date range and organization unit.
- 2. Find the appropriate date and employee.

A Schedule Incentive request is indicated by an icon.

3. Double-click the request icon.

The Schedule Incentive dialog appears.

4. In the Reviewer Comments field, enter comments about your approval or denial of the Schedule Incentive request.

Depending on how indicators are set for your organization unit, reviewer comments may be required.

5. Click **Approve** or **Deny**.

If approved, the activity code appears on the schedule screen and if there were other Schedule Incentive requests, the other requests are automatically denied.

## Deleting, Reopening, and Reassigning a Schedule Incentive Request

If you need to delete a schedule that was bid upon and approved, you can reopen the schedule again for bidding or reassign the schedule bid to another employee who had previously bid on the shift.

1. Open the schedule screen for the appropriate date range and organization unit.

### Example

Initially, there may be several Schedule Bid requests for the same shift.

A manager approves one of the Schedule Bid requests and the shift is awarded to that employee.

- 2. Delete the schedule.
- 3. Click the save button.

The Schedule Bidding Reopen Wizard appears.

		Sched	lule Bidding Re	open Wizard		
The follo employe	wing deleted schedule was e or if the close date has n	generated ot occurred	from a winning sch yet you may reope	edule bid. You may reas: n it.	sign the schedu	ule to another
Delet	ed Schedules					
Status	s Shift Date	<b>Bid Rate</b>	Employee	Organization Unit	Profile	Activity
Pendin	ng 04/22/2010 07:00	100.00	Teresa Briggs	3270	RN-4N	D8
Empk	oyee Bids					
	Employee	Da	ate Submitted	Bid Rate		
	Sally Andrews	0	4/19/2010 13:49	120.00		
	Nicole Buckner	0	4/19/2010 13:49	110.00		
				Reopen	Reassign	lete Delete All

4. Select the appropriate action:

To reopen the Schedule Bidding process to other employees, as long as the Closing Date and Closing Time have not yet been met, click **Reopen**.

Any Schedule Bidding requests that were present before the winning schedule was approved will remain and reappear on the schedule screen. These employees do not need to bid again on the schedule.

To reassign the schedule to another employee who had previously bid on the schedule, select the employee from the list under Employee Bids. This allows the Reassign button to become active. Click **Reassign**.

# **Zoom Control**

The Zoom Control is used to increase or decrease the magnification of the schedule screen. This helps the user either focus on details of a schedule or view the entire scheduling period.

### Note

When the schedule is closed, the magnification setting is saved. The next time the user opens the screen, the magnification will be the same as the saved setting.

To change the magnification of the screen, complete the following steps:

1. Position the cursor over the slider (indicated in the red box below) and hold down the left mouse button.



- 2. Move the slider to the right to increase the magnification of the schedule grid.
- 3. Move the slider to the left to decrease the magnification of the schedule grid and show more schedule cells.

# Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid

### Balancing Grid

The Balancing Grid displays the profiles and organization units for staffing and includes a daily breakdown by coverage period of the staffing levels.

### **Activity Balancing Grid**

The Activity Balancing Grid is populated by the Core Staffing by Activity Code feature and displays a daily breakdown of needs by activity code and profile.

### Note

Regardless of whether you use the Core Staffing by Activity Code feature, the Activity Balancing Grid tab appears on the Schedule screen.

### **Both Grids**

- Click a column header to re-sort the information by that column. Press <CTRL> and click column headers to sort by multiple columns.
- The Group Headers can be selected to group staffing needs by profile, organization unit, coverage period (for the Balancing Grid) or activity (for the Activity Balancing Grid), or no grouping. You can collapse or expand each group header. This allows the user to focus on certain groups.
- The <u>Date Headers (on page 78)</u> display the day of the week and the date for each day in the open schedule. If the date is a holiday, the holiday name replaces the day of week.
- The grid cells show a breakdown by day of the staffing values. The user can select whether to display these values as Coverage, Need, Variance or a Fraction of coverage and need.
- The Staffing Details screen can be viewed by double-clicking on a cell in the balancing grid. The view shows the employees who are providing coverage for selected cell.
- With the <u>My Totals Creating Custom Totals (on page 97)</u> feature, users can create customized subtotals of staffing values at the bottom of the balancing grid. These totals can be for any combination of profiles, organization units, and coverage periods (for the Balancing Grid) or activities (for the Activity Balancing Grid).

### Activity Balancing Grid - Empty Row Explanation

There is a situation you may notice that requires an explanation. You may see that a row appears in the Activity Balancing Grid when there are no scheduled activities that match the Activity Code. This is because the process that determines what to show in the grid looks 4 days prior and 2 days after the open schedule period that you are viewing. And if that process finds an activity, it allows the row to appear on the currently open schedule period. This is to accommodate activities with time lengths that may overlap the open schedule period. Therefore, the appearance of the row is simply a way for you to realize that there are activities near the open schedule period whose begin or end times may overlap.

Understand that an activity scheduled outside of the open schedule period that causes the row to appear may or may not be counting toward coverage totals, depending on whether the activity is set up to count toward coverage totals and whether its length actually overlaps the open schedule period. These scenarios are described in the following table.

Scenario	Empty row appears in the open schedule period?	Counts toward coverage totals in the open schedule period?
Activity occurs within 4 days prior or 2 days after the open schedule period	Y	Depends on the following scenarios
Activity counts toward coverage totals and overlaps schedule period	Y	Y
Activity counts toward coverage totals and does not overlap schedule period	Y	Ν
Activity does not count toward coverage totals and overlaps schedule period	Ν	Ν
Activity does not count toward coverage totals and does not overlap schedule period	N	Ν

Example: The open schedule period January 1 through January 14. In that time period, there are no 1500-8 activities scheduled. However, the 1500-8 row does appear in the Activity Balancing Grid (with zeroes appearing for the entire period).

The 1500-8 row appears because the process looked back 4 days and found a 1500-8 activity scheduled on December 30.

## Group Headers (Balancing Grids)

The Group Headers are displayed in the Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid to separate coverage information into groups. These groups can be by profile, organization unit, coverage period (for the Balancing Grid) or activity (for the Activity Balancing Grid). You may choose not to use any headers (none) so all profiles are listed together.

On the Group Header rows, the total needs are shown for each day. The totals are sums of the needs in each column in the expanded group.

- Groups are selected from a menu accessed by right-clicking. Select the <u>Group By (Balancing</u> <u>Grids) (on page 106)</u> option to display a listing of options.
- The records within each group can be sorted in ascending or descending order. Clicking on the header alternately sorts the group in ascending (A-Z, 1-9) order or descending (Z-A, 9-1) order.

## **Date Headers**

The Date Headers are displayed at the top of the schedule grid and also at the top of the Balancing Grid.

- The date headers display the day of the week and the calendar date.
- The date headers of weekends are highlighted in a darker shade.

Friday	Saturday	Sunday	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thanksg	Day Aft	Saturday
11/21	11/22	11/23	11/24	11/25	11/26	11/27	11/28	11/29

• The date headers of holidays display the name of the holiday instead of the day of the week. They are also highlighted in a different shade.

Ν	0	te
	-	

These holidays are defined in **Configuration > Assignments > Holidays**.

Sunday	Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thanksg	Day Aft	Saturday
11/23	11/24	11/25	11/26	11/27	11/28	11/29
			_			

• If a schedule note has been attached to a day, an icon is displayed in the date header.

Wednesday Thursday	Friday Saturday	<b>Sunday</b>	Monday
11/12 📕 11/13	11/14 11/15	11/16	

To view the schedule notes, from the tool bar, select the **View** menu, then the **Schedule Notes** option. All the schedule notes attached to days in the open schedule are displayed.

## **Balancing Grid Cells**

The Balancing Grid Cells display the staffing values for the profile/organization unit/coverage period (or activity) combination for each day in the scheduling period.

The user can select the type of staffing value to display. The following staffing value options are available:

Staffing Value	Description
Coverage	Displays the number of staff scheduled to provide coverage during the coverage period. This value is calculated from the employee scheduled activity codes which overlap the coverage period.
Need	Displays the number of staff required to provide coverage during the coverage period. This value is taken from the Staffing Plan (for the Balancing Grid) and the Core Staffing Plan (for the Activity Balancing Grid).

Staffing Value	Description
Fraction	Displays a fraction of the coverage value over the need value.
Variance	Displays the difference between the coverage and the need. A positive variance indicates over-staffing, and a negative variance indicates under-staffing.

### **Balancing Grid Only**

The acceptable variance setting allows the user to determine the level at which overstaffed and understaffed staffing values are color highlighted in the balancing grid.

- When the variance between coverage and need meets or exceeds the acceptable variance values, then any understaffed (negative variance) values are highlighted in red and any overstaffed (positive variance) values are highlighted in blue.
- When the variance between coverage and need is less than the acceptable variance value, the values are not highlighted and display in gray.

The acceptable variance values is set up by accessing the right-click menu in the balancing grid, then selecting **Format >** <u>Acceptable Variance (on page 105)</u> **> Overstaffing/Understaffing**.

When a user sets the focus on a profile/coverage period cell in the balancing grid, the schedules of employees providing coverage for that coverage period are highlighted in the schedule grid (in gold).

This same information can be viewed in another way in the Staffing Details screen. Double-click on a cell to open this view.

## **Staffing Details**

The Staffing Details screen is opened by double-clicking on a cell in the balancing grid or by accessing the right-click menu. The view shows the employees who are providing coverage for the profile/coverage period that is highlighted in the grid.

Coverage Period:	D07-11	Profile:	RN-ICU	01/	/31/20	12 07	:00					
Employee Name	Job Class	FTE 6	01/31 7 8	9	10	hı	12	13	14	15	16	17
Anna Barker	RN	0.90	0700-8				1					
Keisha Baldwin	RN	0.90	0700-8									
۰				•	_	_	_	_	-			•

## My Totals - Creating Custom Totals

Users can create customized totals for staffing values. These totals can be for any combination of profiles, organization units, coverage periods (for the Balancing Grid) or activities (for the Activity Balancing Grid).

These totals display in a separate row in the balancing grid.

#### Note

Configure My Totals only appears when there are no filters applied to the schedule.

For more information on setting up custom totals, see the documentation for <u>Configure My Totals (on</u> page 107).

## **Balancing Grid Right-Click Menu**

A right-click menu can be displayed for the Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid. With the cursor in any of the tabs of the balancing grid, right-click.

The following menu is displayed.

- Recalculate Staffing Needs (for the Balancing Grid only)
- Call In Employees

- Call Off Employees
- Add Schedule Notes
- View Schedule Notes
- View Staffing Details
- Set Schedule for Bidding (if you are licensed for the Schedule Incentive module)
- Open Bidding Schedules
- Format

### **Recalculate Staffing Needs**

#### Note

This option is only available from the Balancing Grid.

The Recalculate Staffing Needs option launches the wizard to recalculate the staffing requirements based on patient census and acuity.

For more information, see <u>Recalculate Staffing Needs (on page 50)</u> under the **Tasks** menu.

### **Call In Employees**

The Call In Employee option launches the Schedule Assistant Call In Wizard to search for and select additional staff. This can be used if the schedule is understaffed.

For more information, see Call In (on page 38) under the Tasks menu.

## Call Off Employees

The Call Off Employees option launches the Schedule Assistant Call Off Wizard to search for and select staff to call off or send home. This feature can be used when the schedule is overstaffed.

For more information, see <u>Call Off (on page 41)</u> under the **Tasks** menu.

### Add Schedule Note

The Add Schedule Note option opens a screen to add a new schedule note to a date and coverage period in the open schedule.

For more information, see Adding a Schedule Note (on page 35).

### **View Schedule Notes**

The View Schedule Notes option opens a screen to view the schedule notes attached to dates in the open schedule.

For more information, see <u>Schedule Notes (on page 34)</u>.

## Set Schedule for Bidding

### Note

Schedule Incentive is a separate module. If your organization does not have Schedule Incentive, this option will not be visible.

- 1. Open the schedule screen for the appropriate date range and organization unit.
- 2. In the Balancing Grid, select the shift to be offered through Schedule Incentive.

### Note

You will only be able to select days that are within the Default Days Before Create parameter on the Staffing Configuration screen.

### Example

The Default Days Before Create parameter is set to 45 days. You will only be able to set up an incentive schedule up to 45 days before the date of the shift. If the shift is 46 days away, you cannot yet set up the incentive schedule.

- 3. Right-click on a selected schedule or click the **Tasks** menu.
- 4. Select Set Schedule for Bidding.

The Incentive Schedule Wizard appears.

Continue creating an incentive schedule by completing the instructions in the following <u>Flat Dollar</u> Method (on page 58) or Percentage Method (on page 60) section.

### Flat Dollar Method

### **General Card**

Many fields in the Schedule Incentive Wizard have information already filled in. This information came from various sources, such as the Staffing Configuration.

📀 General			
Classification *	Flat Dollar 🚽	Close Date*	03/06/2011 💌
Auto Approve *	No	Close Time *	07:00
Facility	100	Shift Count *	2
Department	1005	Start Time	07:00
Unit		Hours/Units	8.00
		Lunch Length	0.50
Activity Code*	0700-8	Maximum Bid	
Open Date*	03/02/2011 💌	Minimum Bid	
Open Time *	11:53	Increment	

- 1. In the Classification field, select Flat Dollar.
- 2. In the Auto Approve field, select the approval method.
  - To allow the employee with the lowest Schedule Incentive offer to automatically receive the schedule when the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **Yes**. The manager does not have to approve the Schedule Incentive request.
  - To require the manager to approve the Schedule Incentive request even after the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **No**.
- 3. In the Activity Code field, enter an activity for the incentive schedule.
  - Type an activity code or click 🔍 to select the code from a list.

Only the activity codes configured for Schedule Incentive appear in the list.

### 4. If needed, enter or update the **Open Date**, **Open Time**, **Close Date**, and **Close Time**.

These values determine when the shift is available to employees to request.

5. If needed, edit the **Shift Count**.

This number is the same as the Need on the Balancing Grid. For example, if the Need is 2, the Shift Count is 2.

- 6. The **Start Time**, **Hours/Units**, and **Lunch Length** values default to the values associated with the selected activity code.
- 7. Enter a **Maximum Bid** or **Minimum Bid**, which represent the highest or lowest dollar amount acceptable for this incentive schedule.

- 8. Enter an Increment value to indicate the minimum dollar increment that employee Schedule Incentive requests must meet.
- 9. Click Save.

### **Organization Open Dates Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Organization Open Dates	
Unit Date	Facility Date
Unit Time	Facility Time
Department Date	Processing Unit Date
Department Time	Processing Unit Time
Division Date	Organization Date
Division Time	Organization Time

1. Open the Organization Open Dates card.

The fields allow you to expand the Schedule Incentive offer to other organization units. This allows other employees to request shifts that were not requested by employees in the original organization unit or shifts with requests that have not yet been approved.

The values indicate the number of days before the shift and the time of day that the shift becomes available to employees to start requesting. The fields may already be filled in with dates and times from the Staffing Configuration. You may fill in empty dates and times or change the dates and times that are already filled in.

### 2. Click Save.

### **Overrides Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Positions	Assigned Curriculum Code	Curriculum Description
Stations	Position: 100-1005-300 - Regist	tered Nurse (1)
Stations	curriculum	test curriculum
Position Curriculum		
Position Licenses		
Profile Licenses		

1. Open the **Overrides** card.

The fields allow you to expand the pool of employees available to request the incentive schedule by removing restrictions.

The override options, such as Positions or Stations, show what qualifications an employee needs to have to work this shift. However, if you need to expand the pool of employees to fill this shift, you can remove some qualifications. You cannot add qualifications.

### Example

You may want to remove a certain license or educational requirement to increase the number of employees available.

- 2. Click the appropriate override options and then click the boxes to remove the desired requirements.
- 3. Click Save.

### Percentage Method

### **General Card**

Many fields in the Schedule Incentive Wizard have information already filled in. This information came from various sources, such as the Staffing Configuration.

📀 General			
Classification *	Percentage 🖌	Close Date*	03/06/2011 💌
Auto Approve*	No	Close Time *	07:00
Facility	100	Shift Count*	2
Department	1005	Start Time*	07:00
Unit		Hours/Units*	8.00
		Lunch Length*	0.50
Activity Code		Maximum Bid	
Open Date*	03/02/2011 💌	Minimum Bid	
Open Time *	11:53	Increment	

- 1. In the Classification field, select **Percentage**.
- 2. In the Auto Approve field, select the approval method.
  - To allow the employee with the lowest incentive offer to automatically receive the schedule when the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **Yes**. The manager does not have to approve the Schedule Incentive request.

- To require the manager to approve the Schedule Incentive request even after the Close Date and Close Time pass, select **No**.
- 3. Do not enter an activity code in the Activity Code field.

#### Note

Separate activity codes were created, such as SI10, to work with the Percentage method. The system automatically determines the correct activity code to attach to this schedule based on the other entries made in the Schedule Incentive Wizard.

4. If needed, enter or update the **Open Date**, **Open Time**, **Close Date**, and **Close Time**.

These values determine when the shift is available to employees to request.

5. If needed, edit the Shift Count.

This number is the same as the Need on the Balancing Grid. For example, if the Need is 2, the Shift Count is 2.

6. Enter or edit the Start Time, Hours/Units (the length of the shift), and Lunch Length values.

The Start Time and Lunch Length may default to the values associated with the shift selected for the incentive schedule.

- 7. Enter a **Maximum Bid** or **Minimum Bid**, which represent the highest or lowest dollar amount acceptable for this incentive schedule.
- 8. The Increment field is not used with the Percentage method. Leave blank.
- 9. Click Save.

#### **Organization Open Dates Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Organization Open Dates			
Unit Date	•	Facility Date	•
Unit Time		Facility Time	
Department Date	•	Processing Unit Date	
Department Time		Processing Unit Time	
Division Date		Organization Date	•
Division Time		Organization Time	

1. Open the **Organization Open Dates** card.

The fields allow you to expand the Schedule Incentive offer to other organization units. This allows other employees to request shifts that were not requested by employees in the original organization unit or shifts with requests that have not yet been approved.

The values indicate the number of days before the shift and the time of day that the shift becomes available to employees to start requesting. The fields may already be filled in with dates and times from the Staffing Configuration. You may fill in empty dates and times or change the dates and times that are already filled in.

2. Click Save.

### **Overrides Card**

The fields on this card are optional.

Positions	Assigned Curriculum Code	Curriculum Description
Stations	Position: 100-1005-300 - Regist	ered Nurse (1)
Stations	curriculum	test curriculum
Position Curriculum		
Position Licenses		
Profile Licenses		

1. Open the **Overrides** card.

The fields allow you to expand the pool of employees available to request the incentive schedule by removing restrictions.

The override options, such as Positions or Stations, show what qualifications an employee needs to have to work this shift. However, if you need to expand the pool of employees to fill this shift, you can remove some qualifications. You cannot add qualifications.

### Example

You may want to remove a certain license or educational requirement to increase the number of employees available.

- 2. Click the appropriate override options and then click the boxes to remove the desired requirements.
- 3. Click Save.

### **Open Incentive Schedules**

In the Balancing Grid, a dollar sign symbol appears on the incentive schedules.

<sup>\$</sup>-2.00

To view the incentive schedule details, complete the following steps:

- 1. Right-click on the schedule you want to view.
- 2. Click Open Incentive Schedules.

### Format

The Format option displays a menu to customize the way the staffing values display on the Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid.

### **Balancing Grid**

You can recalculate the staffing needs, select the number of decimals places to display, indicate which staffing values to display, and determine the staffing variance that will be color coded red (when understaffed) or blue (when overstaffed)—see Acceptable Variance (below).

Recalculate Staffing Needs		Zana Dasimala	1			
Call In Employees Call Off Employees Add Schedule Note View Schedule Notes View Staffing Details Set Schedule for Bidding Open Incentive Schedules	<ul> <li></li> <li></li> </ul>	Zero Decimals One Decimal Two Decimals Coverage Need Fraction Variance				
Format	•	Acceptable Variance	8	Overstaffing	•	
				Understaffing	•	0

### **Activity Balancing Grid**

You can indicate which staffing values to display.



### Acceptable Variance

### Note

This option is only available from the Balancing Grid.

The Acceptable Variance setting allows the user to determine the level at which overstaffed and understaffed schedules are color highlighted in the balancing grid. When the variance between coverage and need meets or exceeds the variance values set up in this screen, then any understaffed (negative variance) values are highlighted in red and any overstaffed (positive variance) values are highlighted in blue.

For example, some users may want any variance from the staffing plan to be highlighted. They would set both variance values to 0.

<b>Sunday</b> 02/01	Monday 02/02	Tuesday 02/03	Wednesday 02/04		
1.00	0.00	0.00	-1.00		
-1.25	0.00	0.00	0.00		
-0.25	1.00	0.00	0.00		

To set the variance for the color highlighting, complete the following steps:

- 1. Position the cursor in the Balancing Grid in any date cell and click. The menu displays.
- 2. Select the Format option, then the Acceptable Variance option, then the Overstaffing option.

A cell is displayed to set the acceptable variance value.

3. Enter the variance value in this cell.

#### Example

Enter 0 to highlight in blue any overstaffing (positive) variance, or enter another value, such as .2 to prevent highlighting of small variances.

4. Highlight the Understaffing option.

A cell is displayed to set the variance value.

- 5. Enter the variance value in this cell.
- 6. Click on any cell to close the menu and save the changes.

## **Profile Area Right-Click Menu**

A right-click menu can be displayed for the profile/organization unit area.

## Group By (Balancing Grids)

The Group By option allows you to select whether the information on the balancing grids should be grouped by profile, organization unit, coverage period (for the Balancing Grid) or activity (for the Activity Balancing Grid). Select none to display all rows together without grouping.

To access this menu, right-click in the profiles section.

Group Option	Description
None	Do not group the rows. All rows are displayed together.
Coverage Period	Groups rows by the coverage period that overlaps the time frame of the employee schedules.
from the Balancing Grid	
Activity	Groups rows by the activity codes required during the schedule period.
from the Activity Balancing Grid	
Profile	Groups rows by the profile code assigned to the employee schedules. Profiles include the job class and organization unit of the assignment.
Organization Unit	Groups rows by the organization unit assigned to the employee schedules.

Select the group option from the menu by right-clicking on one of the following options:

## **Configure My Totals**

You can create customized totals of coverage at the bottom of the Balancing Grid and Activity Balancing Grid. These totals can be for any combination of profiles, organization units, coverage periods (for the Balancing Grid) or activities (for the Activity Balancing Grid).

### Note

Configure My Totals only appears when there are no filters applied to the schedule.

To create customized totals, complete the following steps:

1. In the left pane of the Balancing Grid or Activity Balancing Grid, right-click and select **Configure My Totals**.

The following set up screen appears.

My Totals Confi	My Totals Configuration						
Select the items th Right-Click Colum	nat you want to add n Header to Add/R		Enter Filter Term				
Profile 🔺	Coverage	Organization Unit					
HUC-8N	NIGHT	OU7534 - OU616					
HUC-8N	DAY	OU7534 - OU616					
HUC-8N	EVENING	OU7534 - OU616					
NA-8N	NIGHT	OU7534 - OU616					
NA-8N	DAY	OU7534 - OU616					
NA-8N	EVENING	OU7534 - OU616					
RN-8N	EVENING	OU7534 - OU616					
RN-8N	NIGHT	OU7534 - OU616					
RN-8N	DAY	OU7534 - OU616					
				Save Cancel			
			B				

Sample screen from the Balancing Grid

2. In the header row, right-click and select Add New Totals.

A new column is added to the screen.

- 3. Type a new name for your custom totals row.
- 4. Select the by profile, organization unit, coverage period (for the Balancing Grid) or activity (for the Activity Balancing Grid) combinations to include in the new totals by clicking the boxes under your new column.
- 5. When all options are selected, click **Save**.
- 6. The new My Totals row is included in the grid.

Balancing Grid	Requests (1)	Employee Schedule E	Exceptions (0)	Activity Balancing Grid	View Calculated D	ata			
Profile 🔺	Start	Hours	Organiza	tion Unit	Sunday 01/29	Monday 01/30	Tuesday 01/31	Wednesday 02/01	/ Thu C
• D07-11 (2)					۲ (Col	lection)			
✓ My Totals	(1)				🖌 (Col	lection)			
My Totals Test			My Total	s Test	-28.00	-30.00	-26.00	-29.00	-3

Sample screen from the Balancing Grid
- 7. Change the name or remove the My Totals row at any time. To do so:
  - a. Right-click and select Configure My Totals.
  - b. Right-click on the name of your custom My Totals row.
  - c. Select **Rename** or **Remove**.

Licensed Ni	obts
	Add New Total
	Rename
	Remove

# Requests

The Requests tab opens a screen which displays the pending employee requests. Authorized users can handle (approve, deny, cancel) requests from this screen.

#### Selecting the Request Type

Select the type of request from the **Select Request Type** drop down menu. The fields that display on the requests screen are determined by the request type selected.

#### Filtering the Requests List

A filter can be applied to limit the number of requests that are displayed on the screen.

In the **Enter Filter Term** field on the right side of the screen, enter filter criteria. This can be alphanumeric text, such as employee name information or status or date information.

The filter is automatically applied.

#### Actions

The following actions are available for handling employee requests:

#### Approve

Select Approve to approve an employee's request.

To approve one or more records, complete the following steps:

- 1. Select each request you want to approve.
- 2. Click Approve.

#### Тір

For transaction requests, a Time Off informational message appears by default if other employees in the department or unit have overlapping time off.

Click the link in the message to show a list of the employees.

The status of the request is updated to **Approved**. In the schedule grid, the request is removed from the Requests tab and the request icon in the schedule grid updates to the appropriate calendar symbol.

#### Deny

Select **Deny** to inform employees that their requests are not allowed.

To deny one or more records, complete the following steps:

- 1. Select each request you want to deny.
- 2. Click Deny.

The status of the request is updated to **Denied**. In screens that display an icon, the denied request is represented with **8**.

#### Delete

Select **Delete** to remove one or more requests.

To delete one or more records, complete the following steps:

- 1. Select each transaction request you want to delete.
- 2. Click Delete.
- 3. In response to the verification message that appears, click Yes.

#### **Set Pending**

Select **Set Pending Review** to inform employees that their requests have been seen, but have not yet been handled.

To set the status of a record to **Pending Review**, complete the following steps:

- 1. Select each request you want to set to a Pending Review status.
- 2. Click Set Pending Review.
- 3. In response to the verification message that appears, click Yes.

The status of the request is updated to **Pending Review**.

### Transaction

The Transaction option displays all the employees who have a calendar request submitted for the open scheduling period.

Employees submit calendar requests from the Employee record > Actions > Add Calendar.

In the schedule grid, an icon request, displays on the days an employee has a pending calendar request.

When you select records in the **Request** tab, the corresponding transactions in the schedule grid are highlighted with a bold border **Equation**.

#### Handling/Viewing a Single Request

To view the details of a specific transaction request, double-click the transaction request icon or the row on the Requests tab. The following screen appears.

Status. Requested	ł		
Name:	Keisha	Last Name:	Baldwin
Туре:	Calendar		
When Start:	02/07/2012 07:00:00	When End:	02/07/2012 15:00:00
When Requested:	02/06/2012 09:42:59		
Reason:			
Date Time	Hours Pay Code	Cost Center Job Cla	SS
02/07/201 07:00	8.00 PTO	1201.30400 0102	
Reviewer Comments:			
Benefit Balances     Employee Current	Pay Period - 01/30/2011	- 02/12/2011	
Benefit Category	Beginnin	ig Balance	Ending Balance
	6.65150		0.00910
Paid Time Off			
Paid Time Off Sick	0.00000		0.00000

To handle a single request, complete the following steps:

- 1. Optional. Open the **Benefits Balances** card to view the employee's benefit balances (for the current pay period) before making the decision to approve.
- 2. In the Reviewer Comments field, enter any notes regarding this request, such as the reason this trade or offer is approved or denied.
- 3. Click an action to update the status of the request.

#### Handling Multiple Requests

You can handle multiple requests from the Requests tab; however, you must be assigning the same status to all the selected records. For example, you can select multiple records and then approve them.

To handle multiple requests, complete the following steps:

- 1. Select the records that you want to update to the new status.
- 2. Click an action to assign the corresponding status to all of the selected records.

# Unavailability

The Unavailability options lists all the employees who have an unavailability request or a recurring unavailability request submitted for the open scheduling period. Unavailability indicates that the employee is not available to work during certain time frames.

Employees submit unavailability requests through their Employee record > Actions.

Authorized users can handle requests from this screen. See the steps below for <u>Handling/Viewing a</u> <u>Single Request</u> and/or <u>Handling Multiple Requests</u>.

In the schedule grid, a bar displays on the days an employee has a pending unavailability request. A pending recurring unavailability request displays the following bar solution. When a record is checked in the Requests grid, the bars for the related days are highlighted with a dark border.



#### Handling/Viewing a Single Request

Authorized users can handle a single request from this screen.

- 1. Double-click on the line of a specific request to open it and to view more details.
- 2. In the Reviewer Comments field, enter any notes regarding this request, for example, the reason this request was approved, denied or set to set pending.
- 3. Click on the action button for this request.
- 4. If the request is approved, the green bars display without the star for recurring unavailability
- 5. If the request is denied, the bars are removed from the schedule grid.

#### Handling Multiple Requests

Authorized users can handle multiple requests from this screen by completing the following steps:

- 1. Check the box to the left of each request which is to be given the same status, such as approved, denied, deleted, or set to pending. Clicking on the box alternately adds and removes the check mark.
- 2. Click on the action button for this request (see descriptions below).

### Trade

The Trade option displays all the employees who have a request to trade schedules or an offered schedule submitted for the open scheduling period.

Employees submit trade and/or offer requests from Employee > Actions> Self Scheduling.

A trade request needs to be approved by the second employee involved in the trade. This second employee is the "accepting employee". The schedules are not traded on the Schedule grid until the request is approved by a supervisor.

In the schedule grid, an icon signal displays on the days an employee has a pending trade or offer

request. When the box is checked in the **Requests** grid, the shifts involved in the transaction are indicated with a bold border

#### Handling/Viewing a Single Request

To view the details of a specific trade or offer request, double-click on the line of the record. The following screen is displayed to do a side-by-side comparison of the shifts.

- Under the Requesting column, the information on the employee who initiated the trade or offer is displayed.
- Under the Accepting column, the information on the second employee involved in the trade or the employee who accepted an offered shift is displayed.

When Requested:	02/06/2012 15:48:47		
leason:			
	Requesting	Accepting	
Employee:	Anna Barker	Keisha Baldwin	
Facility:	SJH	SJH	
Cost Center:	1201.30400	1201.30400	
Reporting Unit:			
Position:	1201.30400.0102	1201.30400.0102	
Profile:	RN-ICU	RN-ICU	
Date:	02/10/2012	02/09/2012	
Start Time:	07:00	07:00	
Activity:	0700-8	0700-8	
Hours:	8.00	8.00	
Lunch:	0.50	0.50	
Reviewer Comments:			

To handle a single request, complete the following steps:

1. In the Reviewer Comments field, enter any notes regarding this request, for example, the reason this trade or offer was approved or denied.

2. Click on the action button for this request.

The shifts are traded on the schedule when the request is approved.

#### Handling Multiple Requests

Multiple requests can be handled together, if the user is assigning the same status to all the selected records. For example, a user can select multiple records and then approve them.

Authorized users can handle multiple requests from this screen by completing the following steps:

- 1. Select the records to be awarded the same status by checking the box to the left of the record. Clicking on the box alternately adds and removes the check mark.
- 2. Click on the action to assign to all selected records.

The shifts are traded on the schedule when the request is approved.

### **Schedule Incentive**

The Schedule Incentive option displays the schedules which have been set up for bidding during the open scheduling period. Double-click on a record to open it and view the employees who have submitted a bid for that date.

Employees submit Schedule Incentive requests through **Action > Employee > Employee Schedule Incentive**. For more information, see <u>Set Schedule for Bidding (on page 57)</u>.

Authorized users can view the details of the Schedule Incentive requests, including the employees who have submitted bids and the amounts of the bids. The can also handle requests from this screen, approving or denying bids.

In the schedule grid, an icon sign displays on the days that employees have a Schedule Incentive

request. When a Schedule Incentive record is checked in the **Requests** grid, the icons of all employees submitting bids for that record are highlighted with a dark border in the schedule grid **Regular**.

#### Viewing the schedule incentive records

To view the details of a specific Schedule Incentive record, double-click on the line of the record. The following screen is displayed.

- The employees who have submitted a bid for the schedule are displayed, along with their lowest bid.
- Authorized users can enter a comment in the Reviewer Comments field.

	_	S	CheduleBid	ding			
Status:	Op	ben					
Transaction Date:		10/29/2008 00:00:00		When Close:		10/28/2008 19:00:00	
Organization l	<b>Jnit: 2</b> 0	30	Total	Bids:	2		
Profile:	PC	A-2030	Activ	ity:	1900-1	2	
Minimum Bid:			Maxi	mum Bid:	30.00		
Select an indiv	vidual emp	loyee bid in the	list to approve	or deny it			
Status	Bid	First Name	Last Name 🔺	Date Subm	nitted	Reviewer Comment	
Status Requested	Bid 25.00	First Name Leigh	Last Name 🔺 Ashton	Date Subm October 24, 20	nitted	Reviewer Comment	
Status Requested Requested	Bid 25.00 30.00	First Name Leigh Linda	Last Name 🔺 Ashton Kelly	Date Subm October 24, 20 October 24, 20	nitted 008 09:14 008 09:11	Reviewer Comment	

#### Handling a Schedule Incentive Bid

To change the status of a bid, complete the following steps:

- 1. Click on the line containing the employee name.
- 2. Enter a comment in the Reviewer Comments field, if desired. This comment will be attached to the employee's Schedule Incentive record.

		S	cheduleBid	lding		
Status:	Ор	en				
Transaction Dat	ansaction Date: 10/29/2008 00:00:00		0 Whe	n Close:	10/28/	2008 19:00:00
Organization Ur	nit: 200	30	Tota	l Bids:	2	
Profile:	PC	A-2030	Activ	rity:	1900-1	2
Minimum Bid:			Maxi	mum Bid:	30.00	
Select an indivi	dual empl	oyee bid in the	list to approve	or deny it		
Status	Bid	First Name	Last Name 🔺	Date Subn	nitted	Reviewer Comment
Requested	25.00	Leigh	Ashton	October 24, 3	2008 09:14	
Approve	Deny					
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ar II.	October 24, 20	008.09-11	
Requested 3	30.00	Linda	Kelly	OCLOBER 24, 20	500 05.11	
			w.ll.	October 24, 20	008.09-11	
3	30.00 nents:	Linda	Kelly			>

- 3. Select the appropriate button.
- If the Approve button is selected:
  - The schedule is awarded to the employee and the activity is displayed on the schedule grid.
  - The schedule incentive request icons are removed from the schedule grid for all other bidders.
  - The pay rate that was awarded for the schedule incentive is displayed in in the Rate field.

Kelly	Linda	80.00	0645-08			
Kabat	Charles	80.00			SPN-E8	SPN-E8
Ashton	Leigh	39.99		10 😒	[1900-12]	

If the **Deny** button is selected:

- The schedule incentive bid is set to **Denied**.
- Any comment entered in the Reviewer Comments field is added to the record.

• The Schedule Incentive request icon is removed from the schedule grid for that employee.

		-			
status:		Open			
Fransaction D	Date:	10/31/200	00:00:00	When Close:	10/30/2008 23:00:00
Organization	Unit:	2030		Total Bids:	3
Profile:		PCA-2030		Activity:	1900-12
Minimum Bid	:			Maximum Bid:	40.00
Minimum Bid Select an indi	: ividual ei	mployee b	oid in the li	Maximum Bid: st to approve or deny i	: 40.00 i <b>t</b>
Minimum Bid Select an indi Status	: ividual ei Bid	mployee b First Nai	oid in the lis	Maximum Bid: st to approve or deny i Date Submitted	: 40.00 it Reviewer Comments
Minimum Bid Select an indi Status Requested	: ividual er Bid 25.00	<b>mployee b</b> First Nai Leigh	oid in the lis Last Nam∈ Ashton	Maximum Bid: st to approve or deny i Date Submitted October 24, 2008 09:1	t Reviewer Comments
Minimum Bid Select an indi Status Requested Requested	: ividual er Bid 25.00 28.00	<b>mployee b</b> First Nai Leigh Linda	<b>iid in the li</b> Last Name Ashton Kelly	Maximum Bid: st to approve or deny i Date Submitted October 24, 2008 09:1 October 30, 2008 13:4	t Reviewer Comments
Minimum Bid Select an indi Status Requested Requested Denied	: ividual er Bid 25.00 28.00 23.00	<b>mployee b</b> First Nar Leigh Linda Karl	<b>id in the li</b> Last Name Ashton Kelly Sheen	Maximum Bid: st to approve or deny i Date Submitted October 24, 2008 09:1 October 30, 2008 13:4 October 30, 2008 13:4	: 40.00 it Reviewer Comments Schedule was awarded to lowest bidde

## Work

The Work option displays all the employees who have submitted a request to work for the open scheduling period.

Employees submit requests to work from their **Employee > Actions > Request to Work**. Employees search for unfilled schedule openings and select the ones they want to work.

In the schedule grid, an icon will displays on the days the employee has a pending request to work.

When the record is checked in the Requests grid, the icon for that request shows a bold border

#### Handling/Viewing a Single Request

To view the details of a specific request to work record, double-click on the line of the record. The following screen appears.

Status: Requeste	d		
Name:	Anna	Last Name:	Barker
Туре:	Request To Work		
When Start:	02/13/2012 07:00:00	When End:	02/13/2012 15:30:00
When Requested:	02/06/2012 15:58:25		
Reason:	Request		
Activity:	0700-8	Profile:	RN-3N
Cost Center:	1201.31113	Position:	1201.31113.0102
Reviewer Comments:			

To handle a single request, complete the following steps:

- 1. In the Reviewer Comments field, enter any notes regarding this request, for example, the reason this request was approved or denied.
- 2. Click on the action button for this request.
- When the action is set to **Approve**, the system validates the scheduling rules, based on the Request to Work Selection Style. The employee is assigned the activity code displayed in the request to work record.
- When the action is set to **Deny**, the employee is not assigned the schedule. The icon is removed from the grid.

#### Handling Multiple Requests

Multiple requests can be handled together, if the user is assigning the same status to all the selected records. For example, a user can select multiple records and then approve them.

To handle multiple records, complete the following steps:

Authorized users can handle multiple requests from this screen by completing the following steps:

- 1. Select the records to be awarded the same status by checking the box to the left of the record. Clicking on the box alternately adds and removes the check mark.
- 2. Click on the action to assign to all selected records (see option listings below).

#### Note

Employees can view the change in status of their requests on their Home Page on the My Requests to Work card and on the Requests card in the employee TCS screen. When the action is set to **Deny**, the icon is removed from the screen and the employee is not assigned the activity code.

# **Class Enrollment**

The Class Enrollment option displays all the employees who have requested enrollment in an education tracking class during the open scheduling period.

Employees submit a request for enrollment from their Employee > Actions > Class Schedule.

Within the employee schedule, an icon condition displays on the days the employee has a pending education

class request. When the request is checked in the Request grid, the icon is highlighted in the schedule grid **FC**.

#### Handling/Viewing a Single Request

To view the details of a specific education request record, double-click on the line of the record.

To handle a single request, complete the following steps:

- 1. In the Reviewer Comments field, enter any notes regarding this request, for example, the reason this request was approved or denied.
- 2. Click on the action button for this request.
  - If the Approve button is selected, the employee is added to the class roster. The icon (ED) is

displayed in the schedule grid on the day of the class.

• If the **Deny** button is selected, the employee is not added to the class roster. The icon is removed from the schedule grid.

#### Handling Multiple Requests

Multiple requests can be handled together, if the user is assigning the same status to all the selected records. For example, a user can select multiple records and then approve them.

To handle multiple records, complete the following steps:

- 1. Select the records to be awarded the same status by checking the box to the left of the record. Clicking on the box alternately adds and removes the check mark.
- 2. Click on the action to assign to all selected records.

# **Employee Schedule Exceptions**

On the schedule screen, violations appear as a 👔 icon in the Exceptions column. If you do not see the

Exceptions column, you can add it. For information, see Show/Hide Details (on page 67).

#### From the Employee Schedule Exceptions tab

- Click the Employee Schedule Exceptions tab.
  - The total number of exceptions appears in parentheses.
  - A list appears with the details of the exceptions, such as employee information and the type of violation, such as violating the weekly overtime hours.

#### From the Employee Information area

- Click in the appropriate employee's row.
  - The employee's violations appear on the Employee Schedule Exceptions tab.
  - The employee's name appears in the filter field on the tab. View all employee exceptions by clicking **X** in the filter field.